
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

May 25, 2023 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



Public Comment Regarding Items 
Received via email Not on the 

May 2023 Agenda

2



3

barringer
Highlight

barringer
Highlight



4

barringer
Highlight



5

barringer
Highlight



6



7

barringer
Highlight



8

barringer
Highlight

barringer
Highlight



9

barringer
Highlight



From: David Scopp
To: Barbara Buikema
Cc: Domine Barringer
Subject: Re: Request for Board Meeting on May 25 to include Carmel Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement

Project
Date: Thursday, May 18, 2023 12:40:05 PM

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click
links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know
the content is safe.
Thank you for the explanation, Ms. Buikema. Have a good rest of your week. 

On May 18, 2023, at 11:55 AM, Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org> wrote:

Mr. Scopp
 
We cannot place an item on the agenda for this month because we are not taking any
action on this project.  All of the public comment letters we have received are clear
that they are not in favor of the project.  The Board will receive all of the letters in their
packet, including this one.
 
Our legal counsel suggests that you come to the meeting and during the public
comment session you will have the opportunity to ask the board to agendize the
item/action you would like to see them take with regards to the Carmel Meadows
Project.  The Board will then make a decision on whether or not they wish to place it on
the June agenda.
 
Regards
B. Buikema
General Manager
Carmel Area Wastewater District
831-624-1248
 
 
 

From: David Scopp <dwscopp@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 11:23 AM
To: Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>
Cc: Domine Barringer <barringer@cawd.org>
Subject: Re: Request for Board Meeting on May 25 to include Carmel Meadows Lift
Station and Sewer Replacement Project
 
This email originated from outside the organization. Do
not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.
Ms. Buikema: 
 
Thank you for your response. 

10

mailto:dwscopp@gmail.com
mailto:Buikema@cawd.org
mailto:barringer@cawd.org
mailto:dwscopp@gmail.com
mailto:Buikema@cawd.org
mailto:barringer@cawd.org


 

It is my understand that, "No action may be taken upon a matter not listed
on the posted agenda.” (https://www.cawd.org/board-of-directors-meetings.) It is
ambiguous to me whether action is allowed on items under “Public Comments.” 
 
Therefore, I formally request that the Carmel Meadows Lift Station and Sewer
Replacement Project be listed on the posted agenda for the May 25 Board Meeting or
that CAWD confirm that action can otherwise be made regarding the Carmel Meadows
Lift Station and Sewer Replacement Project at the May 25 Board Meeting. 
 
Thank you.
 
Warm regards,
David Scopp

On May 18, 2023, at 11:17 AM, Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>
wrote:
 
Mr. Scopp

We have received a number of letters from the Carmel Views
neighborhood and they all, including this one, will be part of the agenda
under "Public Comments".  Anyone from the public may speak during the
public comment period.

Regards
Barbara Buikema
General Manager
Carmel Area Wastewater District
831-624-1248

-----Original Message-----
From: Domine Barringer <barringer@cawd.org> 
Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 11:10 AM
To: Barbara Buikema <Buikema@cawd.org>
Subject: FW: Request for Board Meeting on May 25 to include Carmel
Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement Project

Hi,

Would you please respond to Mr. Scopp. 

Kind regards,
Domine Barringer

11

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cawd.org%2Fboard-of-directors-meetings&data=05%7C01%7Cbarringer%40cawd.org%7C331403ce1ae54f6c2fd408db57d7abf3%7C593c39f890bd453195ee7cfb5d45e0b3%7C0%7C0%7C638200356046589655%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AK%2F6J1XxFbvE0VzJ0uBtemg9S%2BFTCyZ%2BxFbIQzca2RU%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Buikema@cawd.org
mailto:barringer@cawd.org
mailto:Buikema@cawd.org


Board Secretary/Adminstrator 
Carmel Area Wastewater District
831-257-0444 office
barringer@cawd.org

"STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY:  This electronic message and any files
or attachments transmitted with it may be confidential, privileged, or
proprietary information of the Carmel Area Wastewater District. The
information is solely for the use of the individual or entity to which it was
intended to be addressed. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that use, distribution, or
copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited. If you received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender immediately, destroy any copies, and
delete it from your system."

-----Original Message-----
From: David Scopp <dwscopp@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 11:06 AM
To: Domine Barringer <barringer@cawd.org>
Cc: Ken White <White@cawd.org>; Michael Rachel <rachel@cawd.org>;
Robert Siegfried <Siegfried@cawd.org>; Kevan Urquhart
<urquhart@cawd.org>; Greg D'Ambrosio <DAmbrosio@cawd.org>
Subject: Request for Board Meeting on May 25 to include Carmel
Meadows Lift Station and Sewer Replacement Project

This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content
is safe.

Good Morning Ms. Barringer and Members of the Board:

I am writing to respectfully request that the Carmel Meadows Lift Station
and Sewer Replacement Project be included in the agenda for the May 25,
2023 CAWD Board of Directors Meeting.

I and other Carmel Meadows residents would like to comment regarding
same.

Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Very truly yours,
David Scopp

12

mailto:barringer@cawd.org
mailto:dwscopp@gmail.com
mailto:barringer@cawd.org
mailto:White@cawd.org
mailto:rachel@cawd.org
mailto:Siegfried@cawd.org
mailto:urquhart@cawd.org
mailto:DAmbrosio@cawd.org


End of Public Comment 
Regarding Items Received 
via email Not on the May 

2023 Agenda

13



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
  Thursday, 9:00 a.m., April 27, 2023 

Via Teleconference Webinar & In Person with Proof of Vaccination 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Present: Directors:  President Ken White, Pro Tem Bob Siegfried, and Directors Greg D’Ambrosio, and 

Mike Rachel 
 
Absent: Director Urquhart, Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
 

A quorum was present. 
 
Others:     Patrick Treanor, Acting General Manager  

Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD or District) 
Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD* 
Kevin Young, Plant Operations Supervisor, CAWD* 
Ray De Ocampo, Laboratory Supervisor, CAWD* 
Chris Foley Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
Daryl Lauer, Superintendent of Collection* 
Domine Barringer, Board Secretary, CAWD 
Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
Richard Verbanec, Director of the Board Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) * 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD* 
Nick Becker, Deputy General Manager, District Engineer, PBCSD* 
In Person Public Attendees:  
Laura Bowling |Board Member Friends of Mission Trail Nature Preserve 
Doug Schmitz | Board Member Friends of Mission Trail Nature Preserve 
Virtual Public Attendees:  
Public Attendee|*    Admin|* 
  
*Signifies Virtual Attendance 

1. Appearances/Public Comments: Public Comments (Matters Not on Agenda Any 
Subject ): 
There were no public comments on non-agendized matters. 
 
Appearances/Public Comments on Agendized Items: 
There were no public comments received by the Board.  
 

2. Agenda Changes: Any requests to move an item forward on the agenda will be 
considered at this time.  
On page 9 of the board packet, regarding the meeting minutes, there was a word change 
from “painting” to “paving”. 

14



3. Employee Recognition:  Andrew Millington 
Andrew Millington passed the exam for the California Water Environment 
Association (CWEA) Collection Worker II. The Board acknowledged Mr. Millington’s 
accomplishment and provided congratulations.  

4. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board of 
Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, 
certain personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers-
Milias-Brown representative. 

 
The board room was cleared of all in person attendees and all virtual attendees placed on 
hold in a waiting room. The Board went into closed session at 9:05 a.m. and discussed 
agenda item #4 regarding potential litigation. The closed session ended at 9:44 a.m. Legal 
Counsel reported that during the closed session the Board took up the agenda item as listed 
and received information from staff and discussion was held with regard to the potential 
litigation, and no reportable action was taken.  The Board reconvened into open session at 
9:45 a.m. and all of the attendees were invited back into the open session and all virtual 
attendees had access to the audio and visual platform to participate in the meeting.  
 

5. Bridge to Everywhere Presentation: Patrick Treanor, Acting General Manager                          

Note: Presentation slides posted under separate cover. 

The Acting General Manager, Patrick Treanor, provided an introduction to all of the  
speakers. Ms. Bowling started out the presentation and highlighted the natural assets of our 
area and the connections between walking and well-being. The current disconnected 
walking trails would be connected through the Bridge to Everywhere. Mr. Treanor spoke to 
trail integration of the City areas to the park areas and walked through ten connection areas. 
Director D’Ambrosio continued to lead the discussion starting with the first connection of 
Carmel Mission Trail, which can be accessed through downtown Carmel, and is a 34 acre 
preserve and the speakers moved through each of the ten connections.   
 
Director Verbanec from PBCSD, asked what funding mechanisms and costs are associated 
with this project. Mr. Treanor stated that they are looking at grants, private donations, and 
other public funding.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 
Consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a single motion and vote. 
 

Board Action 
A motion to receive and approve the consent agenda was made by Director Rachel 
and seconded by Director Siegfried. Director Urquhart was absent. After a Roll Call 

vote, the Board unanimously received and approved the following Consent 
Calendar/Agenda items. 

 
 
 
 

15



6. Approve March 30, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes &      
02-27-23 Budget Minutes 
04-10-23 Pension Minutes 

7. Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Clifton Larson Allen (CLA) – March 2023 
Note: This report was not received for the March meeting. The report was received on 5-2-23 via email so it was 
not included in the April board meeting material. 

8. Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements-  March 2023  
9. Approve Register of Disbursements – Carmel Area Wastewater District –March 2023 
10. Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project –March 2023 
11. Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – March 2023 
12. Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report – March 2023, February 

2023 & January 2023  
13. Receive and Accept Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report –March 2023 
14. Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report – March 2023    

February 2023 & January 2023  
15. Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –March 2023                
16. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan    
17. Receive and Accept Project Summaries – Capital & Non-Capital     
18. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – March 2023     
19. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report –March 2023                

 
 

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

  

COMMUNICATIONS 

20. General Manager Report – oral report by Patrick Treanor (Acting General Manager)             
 

• Mr. Treanor reported on the spill that occurred associated with PG&E. PG&E 
has already made repairs and the District will file an insurance claim against 
PG&E to include all of the costs associated with this spill.  

• Carmel River Task Force meeting will occur on May 3rd and the Board was 
invited to attend in person or via Zoom. Mr. Treanor informed the Carmel 
River Task Force about the Bridge to Everywhere project. 

• Meeting with State Parks regarding the projects that the District and the 
State Parks are associated and work on coordinating projects.  

16



• Biobot covid testing will no longer have to be paid for by the District. 
Additional buildout of test will be conducted regarding Monkey Pox, 
Influenza, and the Covid test will continue twice a week.  

Director Siegfried requested an update on information regarding Polio and 
H1N1.  Mr. Waggoner stated that is not under the current Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) program and the District would have to pursue 
those tests independently. Mr. Treanor stated that a recommendation will be 
brought to the Board on what additional testing the District wants to pursue 
with the allocated budget funds slated for this type of testing.  

Director Rachel requested input from Mr. Treanor on his two weeks as the 
acting General Manager. Mr. Treanor replied it was a good experience.  

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

21. Sea Level Rise Planning Grant Application                   
Report by Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting General Manager) 
 

  Action Required – Requesting A Motion to Accept the Sea Level Rise Planning  
             Grant Application 

                
Board Action 

After a brief report out by Mr. Treanor A motion to receive the Sea Level Rise Grant 
Application was made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director D’Ambrosio. 

Director Urquhart was absent. After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously received 
and approved the following Consent Calendar/Agenda items. 

 
Director Siegfried stated that in the letter of recommendation (page 131 packet) from the 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea it was stated that “they own the pump stations along Carmel 
beach belong to us”. Director D’Ambrosio stated that they do not own the pump stations.  
 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBSCD  complimented the District staff for their leadership 
in moving this project forward. 
 

 
22. President White’s Letter regarding another treatment district’s 218 notice to the              

District Board of Directors and General Manager, Barbara Buikema, pertaining to the  
Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency Flyer (TTSA) Proposition 218 Notice to Property  
Owners Of Proposed Sewer Rates  
 
President White spoke about the publication from TTSA and their multiyear rates for the 
coming five years. He was interested in the merits of the District preparing multiyear 
budgeting and published multiyear rates to the public, with the caveat to adjust rates as 
necessary.  
 
 
 

17



Director Siegfried indicated it would be a good idea to look at projecting out estimates. He 
suggested that the public bring in water bills to the District if the use of the sewage system is 
below average. He would like to see a board discussion about putting out an invitation to the 
public to see if their flow is less than the District is billing them and use the reserves to cover 
the reimbursement. It would also provide the District the data that they need to make 
decisions.  
 
President White suggested that the budget committee take this projected forecasting 
discussion on. Both Director Siegfried and Director D’Ambrosio agreed to taking this subject 
matter up in the budget Committee.  
 
Director Siegfried requested to agendize inviting the public to apply for a rebate for data 
purposes. This data gathering would be collected from their water bills.  
 
President White clarified the motion that the Budget Committee discuss preparing projected 
multiyear budgets and rates and bring back to the full board for discussion.  
 

Board Action 
There was consensus from the Board for the Budget Committee to discuss  projected 

multiyear budgets and rates . Director Urquhart was absent.  
 
 

Board Action 
A motion to agendize the discussion of a policy rebate for low usage was made by 
President White and seconded by Director Rachel. Director Urquhart was absent. 

After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously  agreed to agendize a policy discussion 
regarding rebates based on low usage. 

 
 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD, stated that there is no nexus between the costs of 
providing sewer services and the costs of staff managing the plant and treating the sewage 
and the water usage. “Your costs didn’t go down 30% when the usage/flows went down 30%, 
and it doesn’t change the capital projects that need to be completed”. Must take into 
consideration second homes. Suggested getting a consultant.  
 
  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

   
23. April Construction Updates of Project #18-01                                         

Electrical/Mechanical Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement –  
Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting General Manager) 
 
Mr. Treanor gave a brief overview of the project and stated that the District has received two of 
the Motor Control Center (MCC) out of four. The new influent pump has started up and has been 
running well for two-half weeks. Starting the installation of the second pump out of the  four 
influent pumps. The other two MCC pumps will arrive in May and June. The project will be 
complete sometime in August or September. The other large project is the potential paving 
change order at the plant.  

 

18



24. March 31, 2023, PBCSD Board Meeting Summaries-                  
Report by General Manager, Written by Barbara Buikema and presented by  
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting General Manger) 
 

25. Special District Association County of Monterey April 18, 2023                  
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting General Manager) 
 
Mr. Treanor highlighted  the following: 

• Brown Act and Zoom meeting attendance 
• Cooperative Liquid Asset Security System (California CLASS) 
• Legislative Days- John Laird May 16th  and 17th in Sacramento 

 
26. Pension Meeting, April 10,2023- Report Written by General Manager,                 

Barbara Buikema and presented by Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer  
(Acting General Manager) 
 
Director Siegfried stated that the Pension Committee to hold a meeting with Hastie 
Financial Group to defend their investment strategies.   
 

27. Six Sigma Project Update on Source Control Program, Rachel Lather, District Engineer                  
and Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting General Manager) 

Note: Presentation slides posted under separate cover. 

Director Rachel left the meeting at 11:27 am.  

Director D’Ambrosio asked what strength the Ordinance has to have vendors comply. Rachel 
Lather, Principal Engineer, stated the Ordinance has a process and administrative penalties 
that can be enforced. President White, stated that the Restaurant Association needs to be 
contacted, which he has already spoken to Barbara Buikema, General Manager, on this topic. 
Ms. Lather stated another Source Control meeting will be scheduled to setup how to reach out 
to the Restaurant Association.  
 
 

28. Cyber Security Update, Presentation by Chris Foley, Superintendent of Maintenance               

Note: Presentation slides posted under separate cover. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19



29. Announcements on Subjects of Interest to the Board Made by Members 
of the Board or Staff         
Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

 
PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meeting is scheduled for: 
Friday, April 28, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend.  
Friday, May 28, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – Director Urquhart is scheduled to attend.  

 
 

Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting is scheduled for:  
   Tuesday, July 18 , 2023, at 6:00 p.m. – President White is scheduled to attend.  
  Tuesday, October TBD , 2023, at 6:00 p.m. –Director Rachel is scheduled to attend.  

  
 Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Tuesday, May 9, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. President White and Director Rachel are scheduled to attend. 

 
Director Siegfried made the following additional comments: 

• County updated Local Area Management Plan and there will be public outreach for 
the septic tanks. 

• CBA Meeting regarding short term rental mandate and additional housing and there 
is going to be pressure on vacant land and work needs to be done on the 
condemnation presentation done sooner than later. Mr. Wellington replied that he 
has reached out to Best Best & Krieger Law Firm and have condemnation attorneys 
with experience and contact has also been made with Copeland to provide a 
presentation to the Board within the next two meetings.  

• Request to have a board discussion regarding road repairs around town regarding 
lateral replacements. Director Siegfried, in discussion with the General Manager, 
Barbara Buikema, it was conveyed that a City permit would have to be obtained. 
Director Siegfried wanted to know if a conditional permit should be issued to 
determine if the sewer lateral road patch is stable. President White stated that the 
manhole cover changes made has caused differential to the black top creating a 
bump in the road.  
 

30. ADJOURNMENT: 
The  Board adjourned open session at  9:05 a.m. and took a 5-minute break to clear the 
room of public attendees. The Board then convened into closed session at 9:10 a.m.  The 
Board came out of closed session at 9:44 a.m., and Legal Counsel reported that during 
the closed session the Board took up, the matter at hand with regard to the potential 
litigation, and no reportable action was taken.  The Board reconvened back into open 
session at 9:45 a.m. and the meeting was convened at 12:01 p.m. 

 
As Reported To: 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 
________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President of the Board 

20



 

        CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD) 
BUDGET STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

May 15, 2023, Monday, 12:00 p.m.  

3645 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 
 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL:  
The meeting was called to order at 12:01 p.m. 
 
Present:  President Pro Tem Robert Siegfried, Committee member 

Director Greg D’Ambrosio, Committee member 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 
Absent:  None 

 
Appearances/Public Comments: None 

 
Agenda Changes:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
The committee discussed the following agenda items: 
 

A. Reserve Policy Discussion 
B. Multi Year Budget Discussion- recommended two years but topic moved to June 
C. Multi Year Rate Model Discussion-Topic moved to June 
D. Rate Refund Discussion was placed on hold 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting 
concluded at  2:00 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, May 25, 
2023, or an alternate acceptable date, in person and via teleconference webinar. The teleconference 
webinar is hosted through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, 
www.cawd.org, calling the District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org. 

As Reported To: 

__________________________________________ 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

21



22



23



24



25



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Chase Chase
Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.
Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $9,640,647 $17,438,927 $12,035,330 $274,162 $5,123,438 $44,512,503 $956,790 $6,954 $1,210,849

Receipts:
   User Fees 3,398,877
   Property Taxes 899,089
   PBCSD Treatment Fees 115,000
   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 46,050
   Reclamation capital billing
   Permits 2,900
   PBCSD capital billing
   Other misc. revenue 10,199
   Interest income 258,838 8,161
   Connection Fees
   CCLEAN receipts 102,533
   CRFree Project grant funds
   Carmel Reserve LLC-Sept. Ranch Project review fees
   Greeley and Hansen return duplicate check
   Void checks-replace lost checks
        Total Receipts 0 899,089 3,657,715 0 0 4,556,804 276,682 0 8,161

Fund Transfers:
   Transfers to Chase Bank O&M (706,238) 106,238 600,000
   Transfers to Chase Bank PR (240,000) 240,000
   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund
   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures
   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
        Total Transfers (706,238) 0 106,238 0 0 (600,000) 360,000 240,000 0

Disbursements:
   Operations and capital 1,003,466
   Payroll & payroll taxes 229,223
   Employee Dental reimbursements 3,098
   CALPERS EFT 35,438
   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0
   CAWD pension loans EFT 0
   Home Depot EFT 453
   US Bank EFT 17,005
   Deferred comp contributions EFT 12,508 0
   PEHP contributions EFT 3,173 0
   Bank/ADP fees 0 817
   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
   Annual County admin billing fee 27,377
   Greely Hansen deposit lost check
   HCM Unlocked EFT 2,250
         Total Disbursements 0 0 27,377 0 0 27,377 1,077,390 230,040 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 8,934,409 18,338,016 15,771,906 274,162 5,123,438 48,441,930 516,081 16,914 1,219,010

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - APRIL 2023

26



Capital Reserve + O&M + O&M Reserve + Compensated Absences Reserve = Total Fund held in County

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23

Total Fund Balances 22-23Capital Reserves

O&M

Comp Absences

Retreat Reserve

Total

27



0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

Capital Capital Reserve O&M Compensated Absences Managed Retreat Reserve

8,934,409 

18,338,016 

15,771,906 

274,162 

5,123,438 5,180,584 

21,142,110 

12,849,080 

281,144 

4,000,000 

2022-23
2021-22

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



 

STAFF REPORT   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
DATE:            May 25, 2023  
         
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – April 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report - Informational only; no action required.  
     
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in April                                  …..................                             21 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $3,690.00 
 
Maintenance  
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected 
in the past three months. There were 53,994 feet of sewer lines cleaned, there were no 
CCTV inspections during the month of April.   
 
 
Recent Line Cleaning Summary 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

April 53,994 ft. 13.13% 6 – 12 inches 
March 51,385 ft. 12.49% 6 - 27 inches 

February  46,148 ft. 11.22% 6 – 10 inches 
 
 
 
 

 

 

55



Annual Line Cleaning Graph 
 

 
 
 

Line Cleaning Table 

Total Target Amount 
(Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

615,000 197,948 417,052 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
CCTV Table 

Total Required 
amount (Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

408,672 408,672 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
Manhole Inspection Table 

Total Required Amount 
(Manholes) 

Actual Complete 
(Manholes) 

Remaining                  
(Manholes) 

1428 1428 0 
 
Riverwatch Update 

• Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal 
Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of the 
damaged or deteriorated manholes. 

• Staff has completed the CCTV inspections and Pumps Station evaluations are 
being reviewed by the Principal Engineer, all of this information will be used for 
the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.  

 
Construction Activities 

• A spill occurred on 4/25/2023 at 25950 Canada Drive, requiring an emergency 
repair of the District main sewer line, which was caused by PG&E installing a 
power pole through the mainline. PG&E was able to relocate the power pole the 
following day on 4/26/2023.  

58



Then on 4/27/2023 the District called a Contractor that completed the repair. 
PG&E has been contacted regarding reimbursement costs to the District. 
Additional information is located on the table below and the Spill Map. 

 
 

Staff Development 
• Staff completed several in-person tailgate training courses.  
• Staff attended the annual California Water Environment Association conference 

in San Diego the week of April 18-24. 
 
General comments 

• N/A 
 
Service calls responded to by crew 

Date Time See Maps Resolution 
4/3/2023 11:11 AM Lateral Overflow Called by Carmel Fire Department 

for a lateral overflow. Staff cleaned 
District main line and found no 
problems in District’s line. Staff 
informed the owner to call a 
plumber of their choice. See Call 
out map. 

4/3/2023 4:32 PM Lateral Overflow Called by Carmel Fire Department for a 
lateral overflow. Staff cleaned District 
main line and found no problems in 
District’s line. Staff informed the owner 
to call a plumber of their choice. See 
Call out map 

4/10/2023 8:02 PM Spill Called by Carmel Fire Department 
regarding  a lateral overflowing. Staff 
arrived on scene and found the 
property cleanout overflowing. Sewer 
main segment O695-O696 was blocked 
causing the spill. Staff determined the 
cause of the spill to be a root blockage 
in the main sewer line.  Estimated 1,301 
gallons spilled. Staff cleaned the area 
and restored the flow. See Spill map for 
location. 

59



 
Date Time See Maps Resolution 
4/12/2023 4:02 PM Spill Called by homeowner for a report of an 

overflowing manhole. Staff arrived on 
scene and found manhole R727 
overflowing. Staff used a pressure 
cleaner to open the blockage in line 
segment R737-R738. An estimated 361 
gallons spilled. Staff cleaned the area 
and restored the flow. Staff determined 
that roots in the main line were the 
cause of the blockage. See Spill map for 
location. 

4/13/2023 2:49 PM Lateral Overflow Called by Carmel Fire Department for a 
lateral overflow. Staff cleaned District 
main line and found no problems in 
District’s line. Staff informed the owner 
to call a plumber of their choice. See 
Call out map 

4/18/2023 12:30 PM Odor Complaint Called by homeowner for an odor 
inside their home. Staff cleaned District 
main line and found no problems in 
District’s line. Staff informed owner to 
run water down their drains and if the 
problem continues to call a plumber of 
their choice. See Call out map 

4/21/2023 8:30 AM Water leak Called by homeowner for a water or 
sewage leak on their property. Staff 
arrived on scene and found the water 
service line to the property leaking. 
Staff informed the homeowner to call 
the local water company for repairs. See 
Call out map 

60



 
Date Time See Maps Resolution 
4/25/2023 12:28 PM  Spill Called by homeowner for a report of a 

manhole overflowing and a strong 
sewer odor. Staff arrived on scene and 
found a PG&E power pole installed 
through the sewer main, which caused 
the spill. Staff diverted runoff into the 
downstream manhole until a bypass 
was set up. Staff contacted PG&E 
regarding the power pole intrusion and 
they dispatched a crew to the site. An 
estimated 48,269 gallons spilled to a 
body of water. The power pole was 
installed during the windstorms on 
March 22nd.  Staff cleaned a portion of 
the area, and an environmentalist was 
assigned to the remediation cleanup by 
PG&E. Staff notified all regulatory 
agencies. See Spill map for location.  

 
USA Location Requests – 181 
Plumbing permit inspections – 24 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 17 
 

61



5/11/2023

62

lauer
Text Box
April (Red)               53,994 feetMarch (Yellow)        51,385 feetFebruary (Green)    46,421 feet                                     Cleaning Map   



LO
BO

S

SANTA LUCIA

11TH

SAN ANTONIO

SYCAMORE

C
A

SA
N

O
V

A

OCEAN

D
O

LO
RES

SA
N

 A
N

TO
N

IO

14TH

RIO

TO
RR

ES

SA
N

 C
A

RL
O

S

G
UA

D
A

LU
PE

PINE RIDGE

JUN
IPERO

VA
LLEY VIEW

SEVENTEEN MILE 2ND

7TH

FO
RE

ST

SA
N

TA
 F

E

STEWART

13TH

LASUEN

C
A

RM
EL

O

16TH
ATHERTO

N

9TH

RIDGEWOOD

4TH

D
O

LO
RE

S

M
O

NT
E 

VE
RD

E

SA
N

TA
 R

ITA

C
A

M
IN

O
 R

EA
L

C
A

RM
EL

8TH

6TH

M
IS

SI
O

N

4TH

7TH

LA
D

ER
A

10TH

1ST

FL
ANDER

S

CAMINO DEL M
ONTE

TAYLOR

OAK KNOLL

C
A

RM
EL

O

2ND

SA
N

 C
A

RL
O

S

CAMINO REAL

5TH

10TH

LI
N

C
O

LN

STERLING

ESCOLLE

3RD

M
IS

SI
O

N

C
A

SA
N

O
V

A

15TH

SC
EN

IC

M
O

N
T E

 V
ER

D
E

LO
PEZ

SC
ENIC

JU
N

IP
ER

O

13TH

LI
N

C
O

LN

9TH

11TH

OCEAN

BAY VIEW

FISHER

RI
O

HA
TT

O
N

MARTIN

HW
Y 1

A
C

A
C

IA

11TH

D
EL

 M
A

R

O
LIV

ER

5/11/2023

63

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Call-out 4/3/2023 11:AM

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Call-out 4/3/2023 4:32 PM

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Call out 4/13/2023 2:49 PM

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Call out 4/21/2023 8:31 AM

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Call out 4/18/2023 12:30 PM

lauer
Text Box
                                      Call out map April 2023



WasteWater Treament Plant

PACIFIC
OCEAN

CARMEL
RIVER

CARMEL
RIVER

Ca
rm

el
 A

re
a 

Ca
rm

el
 A

re
a 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
W

as
te

w
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
 S

ys
te

m
 I

nv
en

to
ry

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
 S

ys
te

m
 I

nv
en

to
ry

«
Created by

RedZone Robotics
Revised 10/2013

Legend
ForceMains

Sewer Pipes
Gravity
Private
PBCSD
Forcemain
FM Outfall
OFW
Reclamation
Service Area
County Parcels

Spill Map

64

lauer
Line

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Spill Location 4/10/2023

lauer
Line

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Spill location 4/12/2023

lauer
Oval

lauer
Callout
Spill Location 4/26/2023



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
(S/C Admin Dias) 

 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for April 2023) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Safety & Training 
 

• April 4- Tailgate Training; Robert Bowman, Collection Worker III, presented on 
towing and trailer safety.  There is a regular need to tow large pieces of equipment 
like portable generators and trailers behind trucks. Mr. Bowman gave a very 
thorough presentation on all the steps needed to plan, prepare, inspect, hitch and 
haul equipment behind a truck. The presentation included a live demonstration 
using CAWD equipment.     
 

• April 12 - Tailgate Training;  S/C Admin Dias gave a preview of the hands-on skill 
training to be held later that day. He also showed some videos on knot skills to 
refresh the group on the technical terms used in rope knots so everyone could use 
the same terminology when teaching and learning knots. See Ongoing Safety 
Improvements section below for more details. 

  
• April 19 - Tailgate Training; Eye Protection. Ray DeOcampo, Lab Supervisor, 

presented on eye protection. The District provides five different types of eyewear so 
emphasis was placed on selecting the correct type of eye protection based on the 
hazard(s) present.   
 

• April 24-25 – Heavy Equipment Training.  A third-party vendor provided on-site, 
triennial training on the manlift, backhoe/loader and skidsteer equipment.  

  

65



 
Each person received both classroom training and then demonstrated proficiency 
during a hands-on skills test on each piece of equipment.  
 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 
Maintenance Superintendent Chris Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to implement 
safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety Committee. 
Activities in April included:  
 

• Confined Space Rescue Skill Refresher.  The first in a series of focused trainings 
was held in April to refresh staff on confined space rescue skills. Rescue skills will 
be alternated with hazardous materials response skills on an ongoing basis.  This 
training began with rope knots. Knots were emphasized because they are a “use-it-
or-lose-it” type of skill.  Three different people had been preselected to demonstrate 
a total of eight of the most used knots during rescues. Everyone then practiced the 
knots until they were proficient. In the vast majority of scenarios – either at the plant 
or in a manhole-- a victim would simply be pulled out of the space using the same 
steel cable system that was used to lower the worker into the space. Rope rescue 
would be needed if both cable winch systems have failed, or the victim is in hard-to-
reach location or there are multiple victims. The ability to quickly set up a rope 
retrieval system would be critical. A second part of the refresher included switching 
the cable system into retrieval mode. The mechanism that is used to switch from 
free-spool mode to retrieval mode is not intuitive and it is common for attendants to 
get confused on how to switch modes. Because rapid retrieval of victims is critical, 
refresher training was held on this facet of the cable system.  

 
Tours and Outreach 
 

• Tours. On-site tours remain on temporary hold while several areas of the plant are 
being impacted by Phase II construction activities. Further progress was made on 
developing virtual tours. Troubleshooting of technical reception and transmission 
issues are ongoing. A virtual tour for fifty fifth-graders at the International School of 
Monterey is planned for May. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



 
Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers Compensation Claims 
There were no Workers Comp claims or first aid cases in April.  The current matrix for 2023 
is below.  
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2023 Calendar Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 1 5 5 5 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

0 0 0 0 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

0 0 0 0 0 

 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

67



% of Total MG

62.271 141.49

37.729 98.67

100.00 240.16

55.245 50.28

41.581 194.91

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

773.12 N/A N/A N/A

2889.60 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Reclamation facility was in operation intermittenly to keep the Poppy Hills storage tank full

(3) Microturbine off-line due to equipment malfunction scheduled repair by contractor in May

CAWD 1409.48

17,321.01$                            

9,724.66$     

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

17,864.24$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.165$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

170,309.44

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.161$           

CAWD Total

Apr'23

0.000

0.85627.079

Monthly Totals

1.403

0.547

0.132

0.961

Apr'23 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

16.407

43.486

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

18.082

CAWD Total          

17,632.58$   

0.452

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow (2)

0.904 4.133

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

4,030

Jan'23

11,943

2 QTR

8,380.23$                              

Mar'23Apr '23 kW-h (3)

13,314.99$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

7,799

Feb'23

8,208.67$     

14,804.84$                            

16,711.11$                            

1,328,321.00

31,515.95$                            

9,037.96$                              

11,438

Jan'23

2022

Accumulated Totals

30,074.09$                            

105,823.00

111,262.00

58,228.00

26,212.35$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

April 2023

24.024

0.603

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

MF/RO

50.28MG (154.24acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

5,303.60$     

8,891.34$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

21,865.57$   

0.210$           

59,047.44

25,841.25$   27,588.90$   

21,036.13$                            

7,192.67$     

0.207$           4,934.76$                              

12,244.15$   

Feb'23

302.66

597.87

0.000

298.75 MG (916.85 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.356

0.313

Mar'23

0.734

1.195

1.928

736.67

9.30 BG (28.53 K acre-ft.)

4.867

434.02

154.24

0.000

44,764.27$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

164,051.00 34,109.72$   12,496.27$   

2023

16,934.35$                             

1885.30

68



Month

May 22

Jun 22

Jul 22

Aug 22

Sep 22

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Mar 23

Apr 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

69



% of Total MG

58.032 114.41

41.968 82.26

100.00 196.67

1.165 26.26

102.978 176.82

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

773.12 N/A N/A N/A

2889.60 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Reclamation facility was in operation intermittenly to keep the Poppy Hills storage tank full

(3) Microturbine off-line due to equipment malfunction from the PG&E power outages

CAWD 1409.48

21,036.13$                            

8,208.67$     

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

17,632.58$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.182$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

141,147.88

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.184$           

CAWD Total

Mar'23

0.000

1.35341.933

Monthly Totals

2.331

0.978

1.816

0.168

Mar'23 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

30.326

72.259

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

74.411

CAWD Total          

17,321.01$   

0.688

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow (2)

1.104 2.241

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

7,799

Dec'22

5,817

2 QTR

16,711.11$                            

Feb'23Mar '23 kW-h (3)

31,515.95$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

11,438

Jan'23

8,891.34$     

24,003.19$                            

19,953.86$                            

1,324,291.00

43,957.05$                            

10,196.01$                            

11,943

Dec'22

2022

Accumulated Totals

32,804.38$                            

12,926.00

95,967.00

19,562.56

30,074.09$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

March 2023

0.842

2.400

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

MF/RO

26.26MG (80.55acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

4,934.76$     

9,037.96$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

5,303.60$     

0.368$           

45,180.88

26,212.35$   25,841.25$   

22,608.37$                            

8,380.23$     

0.410$           14,804.84$                            

7,192.67$     

Jan'23

252.33

542.40

0.000

300.35 MG (921.78 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.792

0.128

Feb'23

1.833

0.203

4.477

603.28

9.27 BG (28.45 K acre-ft.)

4.074

350.95

80.55

0.000

22,048.32$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

32,488.56 12,496.27$   13,314.99$   

2023

16,289.20$                             

1885.30

70



Month

Apr 22

May 22

Jun 22

Jul 22

Aug 22

Sep 22

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Mar 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

71



% of Total MG

61.703 72.48

38.297 51.93

100.00 124.41

5.237 25.42

97.747 102.41

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Reclamation facility was in operation intermittenly to keep the Poppy Hills storage tank full

CAWD 1409.48

22,608.37$                            

8,891.34$     

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

17,321.01$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.165$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

156,163.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.169$           

CAWD Total

Feb'23

0.000

0.95226.652

Monthly Totals

1.543

0.591

1.144

0.206

Feb'23 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

16.542

43.194

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

42.221

CAWD Total          

21,036.13$   

0.443

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow (2)

0.794 1.538

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

11,438

Nov'22

10,147

2 QTR

19,953.86$                            

Jan'23Feb '23 kW-h

43,957.05$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

11,943

Dec'22

9,037.96$     

24,511.97$                            

16,183.46$                            

1,316,492.00

40,695.43$                            

10,482.05$                            

5,817

Nov'22

2022

Accumulated Totals

30,699.69$                            

13,097.00

102,408.00

26,771.68

32,804.38$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

February 2023

2.262

1.508

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

MF/RO

25.42MG (77.97acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

14,804.84$   

10,196.01$                            

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

4,934.76$     

0.313$           

53,755.36

30,074.09$   26,212.35$   

20,217.64$                            

16,711.11$   

0.377$           24,003.19$                            

8,380.23$     

Dec'22

159.30

314.15

0.000

326.52 MG (1002.08 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.237

0.147

Jan'23

1.058

0.235

2.810

381.63

9.27 BG (28.45 K acre-ft.)

2.596

222.32

77.97

0.000

23,015.40$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

39,868.68 13,314.99$   31,515.95$   

2023

16,511.94$                             

1885.30

72



Month

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Jun 22

Jul 22

Aug 22

Sep 22

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

73



STAFF REPORT  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental 

Compliance Supervisor 
 

Date:             May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – April 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  
LABORATORY REPORT 

• Biobot Analytics continues to provide COVID-19 analysis for Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (CAWD) composite samples of the Influent Pump Station. Biobot samples are 
available upon request and can also be viewed on the CAWD website: Biobot Analytics 
Weekly Reports on SARS-CoV-2.  

 
* Effective virus concentration value is derived by adjusting the raw virus concentration to account for dilution & other factors 
(copies per liter of sewage) 
 

  

74

https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-2#/body_file-e72defec-6488-4185-b5f3-ab45b2fe531e
https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-2#/body_file-e72defec-6488-4185-b5f3-ab45b2fe531e


 
 

• In addition to the COVID19 analysis, CAWD joined the National Wastewater Surveillance 
Program through the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). CAWD Influent 
composite samples are collected two times a week and evaluated for COVID. The Monkey 
Pox virus is evaluated once a week . The last samples collected on April 16, 18, and 23, were 
“not detected.”  LOD is Limit of Detection.  Below “0” is below detection and to interpret 
with caution.  Above “0” is a detect.  CDC is reporting as a zero. 

• The laboratory supervisor was asked to contact other wastewater agencies on what Influent 
virus testing they are performing. Most local wastewater agencies are in the National 
Wastewater Surveillance Program offered by CDC , which includes COVID19 and the 
Monkey Pox virus. The City of Santa Cruz and Santa Clara County are testing for Influenza 
A & B. Monterey One Water is testing for Respiratory Syncytial Virus (RSV), Human 
Metapneumovirus, and Norovirus. Monterey One Water began testing in the summer of 
2022. 

• The treatment plant operators have been assisting the laboratory staff on collecting samples 
and performing analysis until a laboratory analyst is hired.  

• On April 11, 2023, laboratory staff collected National Permit Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) CAWD quarterly samples from the Final Effluent. Samples were also collected 
from Pebble Beach Influent, and the CAWD Administrative  office sanitary sewer manhole 
for Dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane (DDT) analysis. Sludge cake samples were also 
collected and sent to the  Fruit Growers Laboratory (FGL) for analysis. 

• On April 13, 2023, the laboratory supervisor attended Supervisory training in Salinas for 
Supervisory Skills training First Line Supervisors. 

• On April 19, 2023, the laboratory supervisor gave a safety tailgate presentation on Safety 
glasses and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). 

 
 

75



 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 

• On April 11, 2023, the Collections Superintendent collected a storm drain water sample 
from the Ocean Avenue and Beach Interceptor. The laboratory analyzed the sample for; 
Ammonia, pH, Conductivity, Nitrate, Total Coliform, Fecal Coliform and Surfactants. The 
interceptor had a mixture of runoff stormwater and sewage spill. 

• On April 25, 2023, the Collections Superintendent notified the laboratory supervisor of a 
collection spill at 25950 Canada Drive,  and samples were  collected 
from four separate locations. 
The locations included the upstream of the Manhole, downstream of the Manhole, a blend 
sample of creek water and spill, and spill box before creek water. All samples were sent to 
Monterey Bay Analytical Laboratory for analysis.  
 
There were no restaurant inspections performed this month due to low staffing.  

 
Restaurant Inspections 

 
Restaurant 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

    
 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspections 
Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 
 

Compliant 
Reason for Non-

Compliance 
 

Comments 
    
 

Compliance Register 
% Compliance Maintenance Mechanical 

         February 2023 100 100 
         March 2023 100 100 
         April 2023 NA NA 
 

76



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 3/1/18 7/1/40 $0 $0

Treatment Plant Capital Projects 4/30/18 2/29/28 $0 $0

18-01 1620.000 Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor 4/30/18 9/29/23 $4,820,750 $9,137,431 In Construction

18-28 1626.000 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor 7/1/19 6/30/26 $75,000 $130,020 Planning Stakeholder
Meeting

19-21 1993.000 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor 6/1/20 12/30/25 $0 $0 Pending Funding

19-19 1634.000 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner 7/1/20 10/13/23 $0 $17,332 On Hold Until July 2023

19-18 1593.000 Perimeter Fencing Treanor 7/1/22 10/15/24 $275,000 $275,000 Design/CEQA

22-03 1639.000 WWTP Gas and Water Main 
Replacement

Treanor 5/2/22 10/15/24 $100,000 $300,000 In Design

22-04 5500.006 CAWD Bridge and Trail Project Treanor 3/1/21 2/29/28 $0 $550 Funding Strategy

22-06 1640.000 Vactor Receiving Station Treanor 7/1/22 8/29/24 $104,950 $354,950 Design Phase

Reclamation Capital Projects 1/1/19 12/29/23 $0 $580,000

18-26 14777 Sulfuric Acid and Citric Acid Storage and
Feed Systems

Treanor 1/1/19 4/28/23 $334,000 $455,923 Substantial Completion

22-05 14794 Reclamation 15-Year CIP Master Plan Treanor 8/2/22 12/29/23 $300,000 $300,000 In Progress

Collections Capital Projects 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $8,139,000

19-03 1586.000 Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement Lather 8/1/19 1/17/25 $2,000,000 $2,471,949 Permitting

20-07 1636.000 Bay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation Lather 12/31/20 6/30/24 $650,000 $680,892 In Design

20-08 1635.000 Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay Lather 2/5/21 6/28/24 $3,500,000 $3,731,786 In Design / CEQA

21-05 1637.000 Pescadero Sewer Relocation Lather 7/1/21 6/30/25 $100,000 $1,689,236 In Design / CEQA

22-07 1641.000 Emergency Lorca Lane Sewer Relocation Lather 8/30/22 5/31/23 $175,000 $0 In Progress

23-01 Santa Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline Rehab Lather 1/1/23 6/30/23 $0 $0 In Design

20-06 Collections 15-Year CIP Lather 7/1/20 7/1/40 $0 $62,899,430 Work In Progress

Collections Non-Capital Projects 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $0

20-05 River Watch Agreement Lather 2/21/20 2/21/24 $0 $0 Work In Progress

23-02 22-23 Pipeline Spot Repair Lather 1/2/23 6/30/23 $150,000 $150,000 In Construction

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $105,000

18-21 1631.000/
2505.000

Corona Road Assessment District Lather 8/2/18 3/15/24 $0 $0 In Design / CEQA

19-08 1632.000 Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and Pump 
Station

Lather 7/3/18 2/15/24 $0 $0 In Construction

18-29 9095.000 September Ranch Subdivision Lather 9/1/22 8/30/24 $0 $0 Sewer Agreement

Rancho Cañada Village Subdivision Lather 3/1/23 2/27/25 $0 $0 In Design by Property Owner

Tank Replacement Project

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

on Basin Improvements

Perimeter Fencing

WWTP Gas and Water Main Replacement

CAWD Bridge and Trail Pro

Vactor Receiving Station

orage and Feed Systems

Reclamation 15-Year CIP Master Plan

Meadows Sewer Replacement

/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation

enic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay

Pescadero Sewer Relocation

Emergency Lorca Lane Sewer Relocation

Santa Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline RehabSanta Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline Rehab

Collections 15-Year CIPCollections 15-Year CIP

er Watch Agreementer Watch Agreement

22-23 Pipeline Spot Repair

essment District

ine and Pump Stationine and Pump Station

September Ranch SubdivisionSeptember Ranch Subdivision

Rancho Cañada Village SubdivisionRancho Cañada Village Subdivision

H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
21 2022 2023 2024 202

77



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Other Non-Capital Projects 3/1/18 2/29/40 $0 $0

Workforce Now Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Implementation

Real Property Investigation Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $75,000 $75,000 Ongoing

Cyber Security Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $17,000 $17,000 Ongoing

Source Control Six Sigma Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Board Presentation

22-01 5500.006 Long Term SLR Planning Buikema /
Treanor

5/3/21 2/29/40 $260,000 $1,400,000 In Progress Long Term SLR Planning

H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
21 2022 2023 2024 202

78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treatment Plant Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

79



 
Photo: New Sludge Tank Under Construction 

  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) – Elec/Mech Rehab & 
Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

This project is a multi-area project 
at the WWTP aimed at mitigating 
risk of failure in the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine 
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building 
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged 
electrical and mechanical 
equipment in existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$9,137,431 
Cumulative Spent: 
$7,180,187 

FY Budget: 
$4,820,750 

FY Spent: 
$2,859,084 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 2.7% of project cost.  

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Equipment Supply Chains 
Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 

FY21/22 into FY22/23 
Consultants: Design: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants  

Construction Management: Currie 
Engineers 

Contractor: Clark Bros. Inc. 
 

 

 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant 

  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Planning Stakeholder Meeting 
Project 
Description: 

Planning and landscaping around the 
treatment plant. This will include 
looking into possibly replacing the 
non-native eucalyptus trees around 
the perimeter of the treatment plant 
with native tree species. The project 
will start with a study and a plan to 
determine costs, sequencing 
schedule, and visual impacts. The 
Eucalyptus trees around the plant 
have ongoing maintenance costs, 
which may be offset in the long term 
with a different type of tree 
screening. The purpose is to improve 
security around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$130,020 

Cumulative Spent: 
$5,020  

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study 

Phase) 
Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 

grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study moved to 2023; 
anticipate completion 06-30-26 

Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 
Contractor: TBD 

80



 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River Floodplain 

Restoration & Environmental 
Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation  

Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Pending Funding 
Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain, 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines that 
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate 
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines, 
which are currently crossing over a 
portion of the lagoon, are proposed 
to be installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Financial: Coastal 

Conservancy 
Grant 
Budget: 
$750,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
$618,569 
FY Spent: 
$0 

** Project is being funded by CRFREE initiated grants 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 
Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
Reginal Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) 

Challenges: Construction near environmentally 
sensitive habitat and obtaining new 
easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated in 
2025 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 
Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 

Status: On Hold Until July 2023 
Project Description: The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B 

need to have additional 
diffusers installed to ensure the 
proper air (oxygen) transfer into 
the wastewater to support the 
aerobic microorganisms in the 
basins.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,332 

Cumulative Spent: 
$17,332  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: N/A 

Challenges: Weather conditions and 
Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design is complete 
• Materials ordered and 

received  
• Construction anticipated for 

Spring 2023 
Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 
 

81



 
Photo: Existing Dilapidated Fence 

  
Project Number: 19-18 
Project Name: Perimeter Fencing 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP) 

Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design/CEQA 
Project Description: Install a new fence around 

the perimeter of the 
WWTP. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$275,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$48,856 

FY Budget: 
$275,000 

FY Spent: 
$48,856 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) 
Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND), Coastal 
Developmental Permit 
(CDP) Notification 

Challenges: Environmental Mitigations 

Schedule: • Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-

24 
Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Gas Meter on North Side of River 

  
Project Number: 22-03 
Project Name: WWTP Gas and Water Main 

Replacement 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: In Design 
Project Description: The WWTP natural gas and 

water utility service exists on 
the opposite side of the Carmel 
River from the WWTP. CAWD 
owns the piping under the river 
for these utilities. The water 
line and gas line are PVC and 
identified as having a high risk 
of failure. The gas line is 
needed for plant operations to 
provide supplementary heating 
to the digesters for 
thermophilic digestion. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$300,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$43,444 

FY Budget: 
$100,000 

FY Spent: 
$43,444 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: Cost Share w/ Collections @ 
5.5% 

Permits Required: TBD 
Challenges: Underground work in riparian 

area 
Schedule: • Currently undergoing 

alternatives analysis study 
• Design in FY22-23 
• Construction in FY23-24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: N/A 

82



 
Photo: Conceptual Rendering of Public Use and Bridge 

  
Project Number: 22-04 
Project Name: CAWD Bridge and Trail Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Funding Strategy 
Project Description: Construct a new bridge at the 

location of the existing CAWD 
bridge over the Carmel River. 
Bridge would be open for public 
use and would allow for new 
walking trails to connect the City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea (Mission 
Trail) to the Regional Parks (Palo 
Corona). 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$550 

Cumulative Spent: 
$550  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

**No budget. Funding potential via Carmel River 
settlement grants. 
Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: State Parks, Diocese of Monterey, 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, 
Regional Parks District 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Obtaining Funding and 
Community Support 

Schedule: Currently working on video and 
marketing outreach effort 

Consultants: TBD 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 
Photo: CAWD Vactor Truck 

  
Project Number: 22-06 
Project Name: Vactor Receiving Station 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design Phase 
Project Description: Construct a new Vactor Receiving 

Station for the Collections 
Department and the disposal of 
waste collected in the vactor 
truck.  

Department: Treatment 

Financial: Cumulative 
Budget: 
$354,950 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$68,276 

FY Budget: 
$104,950 

FY Spent: 
$68,276 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: Coastal Developmental Permit 
(CDP) Notification 

Challenges: Design for ultimate user 
satisfaction. 

Schedule: Construction in FY23/24 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 

83



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reclamation Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

84



 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage 

and Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: Sulfuric Acid & Citric Acid 

Storage & Feed Systems 
Project 

Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 
(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) 

Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Substantial Completion 
Project 
Description: 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage 
and feed system used by 
Reclamation for enhancing RO 
recovery. Project includes code 
compliant secondary 
containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$455,923 

Cumulative Spent: 
$386,209 

FY Budget: 
$334,000 

FY Spent: 
$260,741 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission 

Notification 
Challenges: Hazardous Chemical Safety 
Schedule: Anticipated Completion mid 

2023 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: Monterey Peninsula 

Engineering 
 

 

 

 
Photo: Exterior of Tertiary Building  

  
Project Number: 22-05 
Project Name: Reclamation MF/RO and 

Tertiary System 15-Year Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) 
Master Plan 

Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 
(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) and 
Tertiary Building 

Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Progress 
Project Description: Asset management condition and 

risk evaluations, development of 
projections of capital 
expenditures, and preliminary 
engineering planning 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$300,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$91,609 

FY Budget: 
$300,000 

FY Spent: 
$91,609 

Reclamation Share: 100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Complexity 
Schedule: Planning Process will extend into 

FY 23/24 
Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: N/A 

85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

 

86



 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Sewer 

Replacement  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Permitting 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1,300 feet 
of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an 
aerial span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$2,471,949 
Cumulative Spent: 
$550,086 

FY Budget: 
$2,000,000 

FY Spent: 
$75,727 

Permits Required: Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for all individual houses. 

Schedule: Design and Environmental Review 
completed 6/28/22. Construction 
to begin FY22/23. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants, WRA         
Environmental 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior 
  
Project Number: 20-07 
Project Name: Bay/Scenic Pump Station 

Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Remodel the interior of the 

pump station and update the 
SCADA panel to minimize areas 
prone to flooding. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$680,892 
Cumulative Spent: 
$70,028 

FY Budget: 
$650,000 

FY Spent: 
$39,136 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA and 

Coastal  dependent on panel 
location requirements. 

Challenges: Traffic Control, Panel Location 
away from bluff 

Schedule: Construct 2023/24 Fiscal Year 
Consultants: SRT Consultant 

Contractor: Pending 

  

87



 

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic 
  
Project Number: 20-08 
Project Name: Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - 

Ocean to Bay 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Replace approximately 9,525 

linear feet of existing 6-inch 
clay pipe with a new 8-inch 
High-Density Polyethylene 
(HDPE) and includes manhole 
rehabilitation. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$3,731,786 
Cumulative Spent: 
$264,180 

FY Budget: 
$3,500,000 

FY Spent: 
$32,394 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: CEQA & Coastal Commission 

permit required. 
Challenges: Traffic control & poorly 

mapped underground utilities. 
Cultural Resources at southern 
end of project. 

Schedule: CEQA complete 11/1/2023, 
Construction 2024 

Consultants: MNS, Rincon 

Contractor: Pending 

 

 

Photo: Sewer Line at Pescadero Creek 
  
Project Number: 21-05 
Project Name: Pescadero Sewer Relocation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Relocate damaged pipe from 

creek slope to roadway 
Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,689,236 
Cumulative Spent: 
$179,761 

FY Budget: 
$100,000  

FY Spent: 
$90,525 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Environmental Review 

Challenges: Narrow road, depth of 
manhole, houses to be placed 
on individual pumps 

Schedule: Start design, public outreach, 
& Environmental in Winter 
2023. 

Consultants: MNS, Denise Duffy, TBC 
Communication  & Media 

Contractor: TBD 

  

88



 

    Photo: LT Capital Schedule 
  
Project Number: 20-06 
Project Name: Collections 15 -Year CIP 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Utilize updated sewer line 
inspection information and flow 
modeling to develop a 20-year 
Construction Improvement Plan  

Department: Collections 
Projection of 
Total Capital 
Costs-15-Yr $63M 

Construction 
Costs: $63M 

Administration 
Costs: $10M (20% 
engineering, legal, 
admin.) 

Financial: Cumulative 
15YR 
Budget: 
EST $63M 

Cumulative Spent: 
 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

 
0% 

Other Entities: River Watch Agreement-see project 
#20-05 

Permits Required: none 
Challenges: Completing all projects near water 

bodies in time for the February 
2024 deadline due to public 
resistance.  

Schedule: 2020 - 2040 
Consultants: West Yost 

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lorca Lane Sewer Replacement 
 

  
Project Number: 22-07 
Project Name: Lorca Lane Sewer 

Replacement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project Description: Relocate 300’ of 6” line and 

install manhole at Lorca 
Lane and Del Monte Street.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$175,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$77,731 

FY Budget: 
$153,500 

FY Spent: 
$77,731 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Weather and high 

groundwater table 
Schedule: Construct 2023 
Consultants: Monterey Bay Engineering 

Contractor: Monterey Peninsula 
Engineering 

 

 

 

 

89



 

Pipeline Spot Repair 18-29 
 

  
Project Number: 18-29 
Project Name: Pipeline Spot Repair 2023 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project Description: Bid award in April 2023  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$118,700 

Cumulative Spent: 
$-0- 

FY Budget: 
$118,700 

FY Spent: 
$-0- 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea,  

Permits Required: None 
Challenges:  
Schedule: Construct 2023 
Consultants:  

Contractor: Rooter King 

 

Santa Rita & Guadalupe #23-01 
 

  
Project Number: 23-01 
Project Name: Santa Rita & Guadalupe 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Approx. 5,800 ft of 6”vitrified clay 
pipe to be replaced with 8” HDP  

Financial: Cumulative 
Budget: 
$200,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$15,184 

FY Budget: 
$200,000 

FY Spent: 
$15,184 

Financial: Cumulative Budget: 
$3,869,330 

 FY Budget: 
$171,464 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea,  
Permits 
Required: 

None 

Challenges:  
Schedule: Construct 2024 
Consultants: MNS Engineers 
Contractor: TBD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90



 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

91



 

Photo: River Watch logo 
  
Project Number: 20-05 
Project Name: River Watch Agreement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Work with Collections to provide 
data that is needed to satisfy the 
milestones in the agreement 
with River Watch. As of May 
2022, staff completed all of the 
1,478 District manholes for the 
Fiscal Year (FY).  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
N/A 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits 
Required: 

none 

Challenges: Completing all projects near 
water bodies in time for the 
February 2024 deadline due to 
public resistance. 

Schedule: Due date February 2024 
Consultants:  
Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

 

92



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment Districts/Annexations 

 

93



 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation 

  
Project Number: 18-21 

Project Name: Corona Road Sewer Assessment 
District 

Project Location:  
 

Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In design phase by Assessment Engineer. 

The application has been made for the 
Septic to Sewer grant.  Also organizing 
efforts for Special Assessment District. 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide sewer facilities to 
the Corona Road neighborhood and 
parcels on the west side of Highway 1, 
across from Corona Road. #18-21 Corona 
Road (Deferred Revenue**) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

** No Budget included for project because the initial costs 
were funded by Corona Road residents.  District has agreed to 
fund a portion of environmental work $56,200 (Res #2022-62). 
Official SRF approval Pending.  
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Permit, CalTrans Encroachment 
permit, Environmental Review 

Challenges: Assessment District process/approval 
and obtaining easements for pump 
station. Funds from homeowners in the 
amount of $67K have been received by 
CAWD.  

Schedule: Assessment District (AD) proceedings 
pending approval of Septic to Sewer 
Grant & Loan Funding.  Estimate start AD 
process in June 2023. 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates and Monterey 
Bay Engineers 

 

 

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor 
  
Project Number: 19-08 
Project Name: Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and 

Pump Station 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

Sewer extension project to be 
completed by the owners of Carmel 
Valley Manor to connect to CAWD’s 
sewer system. Riley Ranch, #19-08 
Carmel Valley Manor (Deferred 
Revenue)  

Department: Collections 
Financial: this is an 
unbudgeted item- 
under repayment 
agreement (no 
funds received)- 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$180 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$180 

Other Entities: The prospect of a pipeline has given 
rise to a plethora of potential 
additional connections 

Permits Required: County Encroachment Permit, 
Environmental Review completed.  

Challenges: Funding, Repayment Agreement, 
easement agreements LAFCO 
annexation 

Schedule: Approved without protest at 
3/22/21 LAFCO hearing. Easement 
and Sewer Extension Agreements 
signed in September 2022.  
Construction is in progress. 

Consultants: MNS and Rincon are working for 
Carmel Valley Manor to permit and 
design the project.  

Contractor: N/A 

 

94



 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

 

95



 

            ADP Workforce Now 

Photo: ADP Clip Art 
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Workforce Now 
Project Location: All Supervisor Locations 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Implementation 
Project 
Description: 

Implementation of a 
comprehensive Human Resource 
(HR) software database for all 
supervisors and employees to 
utilize. Modules provide 
employee development tracking, 
benefits administration, custom 
performance review templates, 
and employee goal management. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$2,520 (annual 
fee) 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,520 (annual 
fee) 

Challenges: Technical issues need to be 
resolved & employee training. 
Implementation of advanced 
features for employee 
development and learning 
management.   

Schedule: Implemented in April 2023. HCM 
Unlocked Consultant hired for 
specialized implementation 
services.  Currently working on 
Timesheet component. 

Consultants: ADP 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Photo: Real Estate Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Real Property Investigation 
Project Location: Carmel Valley 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Evaluation in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

An investigation of a possible 
new treatment facility site in the 
mouth of the Carmel Valley, 
which is in response to the 
Coastal Commission requirement 
to move facilities within 30 years. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$75,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None – at this time 

Challenges: Limited land possibilities, 
regulatory hurdles, and zoning 

Schedule: open ended 
Consultants: Mahoney & Associates 

 

  

96

https://youtu.be/0_dJBfrta9g


 
Photo: Cyber Security Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Cyber Security 
Project Location: District-wide 
Project Manager: Chris Foley 
Status: Ongoing 
Project Description: Internal Cyber Security 

Incident Response Team 
(CSIRT) formed, and they are 
working on a response plan & 
training. The upgrades to 
email filtering system have 
been completed. Stricter 
geofencing policies have been 
put in place, and a cold backup 
system that is sandboxed from 
the network were installed 
March 2022.   

Department: All 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$17,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Challenges: Ongoing training & the need 
for continual upgrades as skills 
of hackers grow. 

Schedule: Continually updating 
Consultant: Exceedio 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Six Sigma Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Source Control Six Sigma 

Project Location: Management staff 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Board Presentation 
Project 
Description: 

A Six Sigma project to improve 
source control activities by 
focusing majority of inspection and 
compliance efforts on restaurants 
determined to be likely causes of 
grease in District lines. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$2,000 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Implementation phase.  Discussing 

next steps in implementation. 
Schedule: Ongoing 
Consultants: Self-study online 

 

  

97



 

Photo: California coastline  
  
Project Number: 22-01 
Project Name: Long-Term Sea Level Rise Planning 
Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema/Patrick Treanor 
Status: In Progress 
Project 
Description: 

As conditions of Coastal Permit #3-
82-199-A8 - the District submitted 
its Long-Term Coastal Hazards Plan 
on 03-03-22.  Board approved a 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Alternatives Planning Assistance on 
Sea Level Rise consultant services 
contract in May 2022.   

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$1,400,00 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$219,862 

FY Budget: 
$260,000 

FY Spent: 
$219,862 

Permits Required: In response to California Coastal 
Commission 

Challenges: Establishing focus on long term 
objectives and committing to 
follow through items. 

Schedule: WWTP Relocation Planning 
Alternatives on Sea Level Rise 
presented in  May 2022  

Consultants: Greeley & Hansen 

 

 

 

 

98



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent                                             
 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Reports – April 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Treatment Plant: 

• The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing projects and concentrating 
on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of April. 

• April 17, the 65kW microturbine was removed from service due to a crack in the 
combustion liner. Repairs have been scheduled for May.  

• Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) is receiving and processing process water 
from FEC Future Contractors and Engineers during their bridge repair work for Cal 
Trans in the Big Sur Area on Highway One. 

• Operations staff are assisting the Laboratory in running analysis during the recruiting 
process for the Laboratory Analyst/Environmental Compliance Inspector I/II. 

• On April 28, an Operations Staff member was injured in an accident (off work) that will 
require a 4-to-6-month recovery period. During this time Greg Ange from the 
Maintenance Department will be filling in for this operator. Mr. Ange possesses a 
Grade III Operator Certification from the State of California and has performed 
operational duties before for CAWD. 
 

Reclamation: 
• The Reclamation Facility began the irrigation season on April 5. 
• H2O Innovations had an onsite for site visit reviewing the program changes for 90 

percent recovery on the Reverse Osmosis system. 
• Staff continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and any equipment 

that needs maintenance for the Microfiltration (MF) and Reverse Osmosis Systems 
(ROS).  

• Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) cleans on Microfiltration (MF) Cells 1, 2, and 3. 
The cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures (TMPs) pressures 
ranging between 1.8 to 5.5 pounds per square inch (psi).  

• (Project #21-09) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA). Operations staff continues working with Maintenance and 
Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming of the PLC/SCADA System.  
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

99



Training: 
• Staff participated in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the Digester building 

conference room. 
• April 12, Plant staff participated in skill set drills for confined space knots. 
• April 19, the Operations Superintendent attended an online seminar on “Pesky 

Compensation Issues under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) sponsored by Liebert, 
Cassidy, and Whitmore. 

• April 19, the Operations Superintendent attended a State of California online seminar 
on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”. 

• On April 25, the Operations Superintendent attended a State of California online 
seminar on “Dealing with Forever Chemicals”. 
 

Capital Improvement:  
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the 

Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for 
the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, 
Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 
Control Building and Dewatering Building. 
 

Meetings Attended 
• April 13, Operations Superintendent attended a Zoom meeting with the Water 

Awareness Committee of Monterey County. 
• April 14, Teams meeting with Trussell Technologies reviewing the operational 

performances of the Microfiltration and Reverse Osmosis Systems. 
• April 26, Operations Superintendent attended demonstration with other CAWD staff 

on Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) using Multimedia 
Messaging Service Platform. 

• (Project #18-01) Weekly Teams Meeting on the construction progress of the 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 
for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, 
Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 
1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

 
Discharge Permit Violations 

• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of March 2023.  
• There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of March 
2023.  

• The Semi-Annual October 2022 through March 2023 Toxicity Report for the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-
2014-0012 was submitted with no violations.  

 
FUNDING-N/A-Informational item only 
 

100



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – April 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed 

• The new Reverse Osmosis (RO) Clean in place (CIP) tank heater was installed. The 
old unit failed due to age. While staff were working on the system they examined 
the design and determined that adding a low level switch would protect the heater 
if the tank is empty. The switch was added into the heater control circuit.  The 
originally designed protection is a thermostat so the low level switch will add more 
protection for the new heater.  
 

• (Update 1) The 65-kilowatt (kW) microturbine was repaired. The internal liner was 
replaced by Cal Microturbine.  
 

• The coolant leak for the 750kW generator was repaired by RFMacDonald.  
 

• The 1 water system piping was replaced from the southside of the plant to the new 
sludge holding tank. Replacement of the heavily corroded black iron piping with 
plastic pipe has improved the water quality for the safety eyewashes. Staff 
documented the exact piping locations and the valve locations.  

 
• Secondary clarifier 2 arm has been repaired. The scraper arm had twisted. The 

torque setting was tested, and staff discovered there was a 6 second delay in the 
timer. The timer has been set to zero so an over-torque condition will immediately 
stop the arm. 

 
 
 

  

101



 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects  

• (Update 3: Scheduled for June)- Staff is working with DKF Solutions on Risk Survey 
improvements. The fall protection plan will be the first document updated.    
 

• (Waiting on contractor) All the parts have arrived for the lunchroom electrical 
upgrade. The obsolete motor control center will be removed now that the power  
has been re-routed to the new digester control building by the contractor as part of 
the electrical/mechanical rehabilitation and sludge holding tank replacement 
project.  
 

• (Waiting on contractor) Parts have arrived for the administration building portable 
generator connection.  
 

• Staff are adding new phase 2 assets into the computerized maintenance 
management software and creating preventative maintenance tasks as new 
equipment comes online.  
 

• Staff are reviewing the list of critical equipment preventative maintenance work 
orders and optimizing the lubrication and oil change schedules.  
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance (April) 
        
Total Work Orders Generated    274 
Total Work Orders 
Closed/Done    242 
Total Work Orders Still Open    32 
Percentage of Work Orders 
Completed    88.32% 

        
 

 
 

102



 
 
FUNDING-N/A- Informational item only 
 
 

103



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:  May 25, 2023 
 

Subject:          General Engineering  
   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This report is provided to update the Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District 
(District) on current engineering activities during the month of April. 
 
General Engineering 
 
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2021 Annexation, 
including Yankee Point, Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road.   
 
The Corona Road State Revolving Fund (SRF) grant and loan application submittals were 
submitted prior to the  April 1, 2023 application deadline.   We have reached out to our SRF 
grant manager and there is nothing to report at this time regarding when we will receive 
notice that the grant/loan was approved for the project.  In the meantime, in order for the 
parcels that are benefitting from the SRF loan to pay off the loan over 30 years, the District 
will have to set up an Assessment District  that will be established through a Proposition 
218 process.  This will be the next step needed to be able to move forward with the 
construction of the project. We are moving forward with completing the Assessment 
Engineer’s report with Monterey Bay Engineers and once we know that the project has 
received loan funding, we will proceed with the Assessment District formation process. 
 
Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) have commenced construction and staff are actively involved 
in the submittal review process, as needed.  There are many inquiries from parcel owners 
along the alignment of the CVM project regarding the process to connect to the District. 
 
September Ranch have commenced grading their property.  Staff are attending the 
construction meetings and providing reviews and approvals of submittals from the 
contractor, Don Chapin, as needed.  MNS is providing inspection services on behalf of the 
District. 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

  

104



Resolutions 

105



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Reclamation Budget 2023-2024 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District (CAWD)/Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Reclamation Project Budget. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget was approved at the 
Technical Advisory Committee group level on May 2, 2023. Final approval was given by 
the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 9, 2023 meeting. A copy of the 
Project 2023-24 Budget is attached. 
 
Items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, 
for approval and any applicable resolution. 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
All funding is covered by the Reclamation Project or by the Pebble Beach Company and 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group, as project guarantors. 
 
 
Attachment: 

• CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 2023-2024 Budget 

  

106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
(CAWD)/PEBBLE BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT (PBCSD)  

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 RECLAMATION PROJECT BUDGET 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Budget was approved at the Technical Advisory Committee group level and final 

approval was given by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 9, 2023 

meeting; and 

WHEREAS, items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD 

Board, as appropriate, for approval and any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the attached CAWD/PBCSD 

Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 25, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 

     ________________________________ 
     Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

139



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:                 Board of Directors 

 
From:            Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 
Date:             May 25, 2023 

 
  Subject:        Engineering Support For River Watch   
                  Report and other items as needed  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to enter into a contract with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. to provide 
engineering support services for the Principal Engineer. The project support includes 
providing assistance in writing the report to River Watch, updating the Capital 
Improvement Project maps and other services as needed for completing the report in the 
amount of $134,780. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On November 12, 2019, California River Watch (CRW) served Carmel Area Wastewater District 
with a 60-day Notice of Violations and Intent to File Suit alleging violation of the Clean Water Act 
and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.  On February 21, 2020 a 
“Settlement Agreement and Release” was signed by CAWD and CRW that summarizes tasks to be 
performed by CAWD in order to avoid the high costs of litigation.  The original agreement required 
that CAWD complete all items by February 2023 but an amendment to the agreement was 
approved on August 4, 2020 that added a year to the deadline due to COVID related staffing issues.  

Additional engineering support is needed in order to prepare the report by the deadline. Support 
would include preparation of tables and figures for the report. In addition, the 15-year Capital 
Improvement Plan will  be updated with more current  figures. CAWD has been utilizing the 
services of Kennedy/Jenks for engineering staff support at the treatment plant and we have been 
happy with the services provided. Kennedy/Jenks was contacted for an additional proposal to fulfill 
this type of  engineering support for the District Principal Engineer. 

The attached proposal summarizes the work proposed to be provided by Kennedy/Jenks including 
additional undefined services that may be needed once we start compiling the River Watch report.  
Kennedy/Jenks proposes to provide the services for a not-to exceed amount of $134,780. 

FUNDING 

Consulting Engineering is included in the 2023/2024 budgets in the amount of $224,800. 
Attachment 1: Kennedy Jenks Consultants, Inc.  Proposal 
Resolution 2023-30 

  

140



 

 
April 28, 2023 
 
 
Rachél Lather, M.S., P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93922 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services 
 Collection System Support 

KJ Proposal No. B018340*32101 
 

Dear Ms. Lather, 

Kennedy Jenks (KJ) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide professional engineering services to support 
Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) with its sewer collection system. 

Project Overview 
CAWD is continually working to maintain and improve its extensive collection system, and seeks assistance with 
multiple related projects. CAWD has identified at least 38 future projects in a detailed Capital Improvement Plan, 
and needs figures delineating each project to facilitate communication and planning.  Additionally, CAWD entered 
into a Settlement Agreement and Release in 2020 with California River Watch, a nonprofit corporation.  The terms 
and conditions of the 2020 Settlement Agreement included tasks related to Sewer Collection System Investigation 
and Repair and Sewer System Overflow Reporting and Response.  CAWD now seeks support documenting the 
completed actions in an Engineering Report. 

Scope of Work 
Task 1 – Capital Improvement Plan Support  
KJ will create figures for CAWD’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) spreadsheet; one for each of 38 planned collection 
system projects. If desired, additional figures can be provided under Task 4 Optional Services.  KJ staff will revise the 
figures after CAWD review, before the deadline of October 2023. KJ will prepare for and facilitate two (2) meetings 
with two (2) KJ staff (Project manager and GIS specialist). The two meetings will consist of the following:  

• Meeting #1: review the project locations (virtual, 2 hours) 
• Meeting #2: review CAWD comments on draft figures (virtual, 2 hours) 

 

Task 1 Assumptions 

• Up to 40 figures 
• CAWD will provide base GIS files (.shp) 

 
Task 1 Deliverables 

• Set of draft electronic figures (.jpg or other file size small enough to include in Excel) 
• Set of final electronic figures (.jpg or other file size small enough to include in Excel) 

 

141



Task 2 – Engineering Report Support 
KJ will assist CAWD with draft figures, tables, and sections of text for the Engineering Report due February 2024. KJ 
will revise the draft figures, tables, and sections of text based on CAWD comments. KJ will prepare for and facilitate 
three (3) meetings with two (2) KJ staff (project manager and project engineer). The meetings will consist of the 
following: 

• Meeting #3: Data gaps and analysis (virtual, 1 hour) 
• Meeting #4: Site visit (in person, 2 hours) 
• Meeting #5: Review CAWD comments on draft materials (virtual, 1 hour) 

 

Task 2 Assumptions 

• CAWD will compile, complete and submit the final report 
• Up to 10 tables 
• Up to 10 figures 
• Up to 10 pages of text  
• One round of revisions for tables, figures, and text after CAWD comments 

 
Task 2 Deliverables 

• Draft electronic figures and tables 
• Draft sections of text to be included in the report (.docx) 
• Final figures, tables, and text (electronic) 

Task 3 – Project Management 

KJ will provide project management services to manage project costs, meet the project schedule requirements, 
collaborate with CAWD on project progress, and maintain effective communication. KJ will provide monthly invoices 
to CAWD that include hourly expenditures separated into each budget task. A project file will be maintained, 
including copies of correspondence, reports, minutes of meetings, and memoranda. The proposed budget includes 
9 months of project management, quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) and an internal combined kickoff 
and concept and criteria review meeting.  After notice to proceed, the KJ project manager will organize a kickoff 
meeting with CAWD to review the project scope and update the project schedule if necessary.  The KJ project 
manager will also participate in monthly coordination calls with CAWD for the duration of the project. 

 
Task 3 Assumptions 

• Project duration of nine (9) months  
• Kickoff meeting and monthly check-in calls (1 hour each, virtual) 

 
Task 3 Deliverables 

• Electronic invoices and status reports  

Task 4 – Optional Services 
Upon request from CAWD, KJ can provide additional assistance for the CIP, Engineering Report, and/or additional 
projects related to the collection system.  KJ will discuss each specific request with CAWD before proceeding with 
additional work, and can provide additional support up to the maximum proposed optional budget below.

 

  

142



Estimated Schedule 
It is anticipated that the task order will be completed approximately 9 months from notice to proceed, excluding optional 
tasks. 

Milestone Completion Date 
Notice to Proceed 6/1/2023 
Draft CIP Figures 7/13/2023 
Final CIP Figures 8/25/2023 
Draft Materials for the Engineering Report 9/22/2023 
Final Materials for the Engineering Report 11/13/2023 
Optional Services 2/28/2024 

  
 

Compensation for Consulting Services 

Task Budget 
Task 1 – Capital Improvement Plan Support $21,320 
Task 2 – Engineering Report Support $67,615 
Task 3 – Project Management $15,845 
Task 4 – Optional Services $30,000 
Total $134,780 

  
In accordance with the attached Custom Schedule of Charges dated January 1, 2022, we propose a budget of 
$134,780. A breakdown of our proposed project budget and line-item descriptions of the project deliverables is 
provided in Attachment A. It is acknowledged the individual task budget breakdowns are an estimate and may be 
transferred among each work element depending on specific interim work needs, as long as the total budget is not 
exceeded.   

Standard Conditions 
To assure a clear understanding of all matters related to our mutual responsibilities, the attached Standard Conditions 
dated 1 August 2021 are made part of this agreement. We have found these terms to be appropriate for use in 
agreements for provision of consultant services. Accordingly, if any conflicts exist between the attached terms and 
the form of any purchase order or confirmation issued, the terms of this proposal and the attached Standard Conditions 
will prevail in the absence of our express written agreement. This proposal is based on current projections of staff 
availability and costs and, therefore, is valid for 90 days following the date of this letter. 

Authorization 
The KJ team appreciates the opportunity to submit another proposal for the continual improvements of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District’s Collection System and looks forward to continuing to work with you and your staff. Please 
feel free to contact the proposed Project Manager Rachelle Thompson at (650) 852-2808 should you have any 
questions.  

  

143



 

KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

Signature:    
 
Printed Name:   Nick Lazarakis, P.E.   
 
Title:    _____Principal  ______ 
 
Date:    _____4/28/2023    

Signature:         
 
Printed Name:        
 
Title:          
 
Date:          
  

  

144



 

Contact Information 
CONTACT 
Rachelle Thompson, PE 
rachellethompson@kennedyjenks.com 
 
ADDRESS 
2350 Mission College Boulevard 
Suite 700, Santa Clara, CA 95054 

145



Client/Address:  Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93922 

  
Contract/Proposal Date:  April 2023 

Custom Schedule of Charges Date: January 1, 2022 

PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 
Classification Hourly Rate 

 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 1 ............................................................................ $140 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 2 ............................................................................ $170 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 3 ............................................................................ $190 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 4 ............................................................................ $205 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 5 ............................................................................ $225 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 6 ............................................................................ $250 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 7 ............................................................................ $275 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 8 ............................................................................ $295 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 9 ............................................................................ $310 
 CAD-Technician .................................................................................................. $130 
 Senior CAD-Technician ....................................................................................... $145 
 CAD-Designer ..................................................................................................... $160 
 Senior CAD-Designer .......................................................................................... $175 
 Project Assistant ................................................................................................. $135 
 Administrative Assistant ...................................................................................... $115 
 Aide ....................................................................................................................... $90 

No Associated Project Cost charge will be added to the Personnel Compensation. 

Direct Expenses 

Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work, will be at cost plus 
ten percent for items such as: 

a. Maps, photographs, 3rd party reproductions, 3rd party printing, equipment rental, and special supplies 
related to the work. 

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, contractors, and other outside services. 
c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence. 
d. Project specific telecommunications and delivery charges. 
e. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work. 
f. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased for the work. 

Reimbursement for vehicles used in connection with the work will be at the federally approved mileage rates or at a 
negotiated monthly rate. 
If prevailing wage rates apply, the above billing rates will be adjusted as appropriate.   
Overtime for non-exempt employees will be billed at one and a half times the Hourly Rates specified above. 
Rates for professional staff for legal proceedings or as expert witnesses will be at rates one and one-half times the 
Hourly Rates specified above. 
Excise and gross receipts taxes, if any, will be added as a direct expense. 
The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the agreement for the services provided, effective through 
December 31, 2023. After December 31, 2023, invoices will reflect the January 1, 2023 Schedule of Charges. 

146



 

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/contractupdates/shared documents/client standard conditions/fmstandardconditions_pw_2021.docx  Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. August 2021 

Client:        

Contract/Proposal Date:        

Standard Conditions 1 August 2021

CLIENT and KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. 
(“CONSULTANT”) agree that the following provisions shall be a part 
of their agreement. 

1. TERMS OF PAYMENT. CLIENT will be invoiced at the end of the 
first billing period following commencement of work and at the 
end of each billing period thereafter. Payment in full of an 
invoice must be received by CONSULTANT within thirty (30) 
days of the date of such invoice. 

2. EFFECT OF INVOICE. The work performed shall be deemed 
approved and accepted by CLIENT as and when invoiced unless 
CLIENT objects within fifteen (15) days of invoice date by written 
notice specifically stating the details in which CLIENT believes 
such work is incomplete or defective, and the invoice amount(s) 
in dispute. CLIENT shall pay undisputed amounts as provided for 
in the preceding paragraph. 

3. INTEREST; SUSPENSION OF WORK. Failure of CLIENT to 
make full payment of an invoice so that it is received by 
CONSULTANT within said sixty (60) days of the date thereof 
subjects the amount overdue to a delinquent account charge of 
one percent (1%) of the invoice amount per month, compounded 
monthly, but not to exceed the maximum rate permitted by law. 
Failure of CLIENT to submit full payment of an invoice within 
sixty (60) days of the date thereof subjects this agreement and 
the work herein contemplated to suspension or termination at 
CONSULTANT’s discretion. 

4. ADVANCE PAYMENT: WITHHOLDING OF WORK PRODUCT. 
CONSULTANT reserves the right to require payment in advance 
for work it estimates will be done during a given billing period. 
CONSULTANT, without any liability to CLIENT, reserves the right 
to withhold any services and work products herein contemplated 
pending payment of CLIENT’s outstanding indebtedness or 
advance payment as required by CONSULTANT. Where work is 
performed on a reimbursable basis, budget may be increased by 
amendment to complete the scope of work. CONSULTANT is not 
obligated to provide services in excess of the authorized budget. 

5. STANDARD OF CARE. CONSULTANT’s services performed 
under this agreement will be performed in a manner consistent 
with the care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time 
and in the same or similar locality. When the findings and 
recommendations of CONSULTANT are based on information 
supplied by CLIENT and others, such findings and 
recommendations are correct to the best of CONSULTANT’s 
knowledge and belief. No warranty, express or implied, is made 
or intended by this agreement, or by the foregoing statement of 
the applicable standard of care, or by providing consulting 
services or by furnishing oral or written reports of findings made. 
No entity other than CLIENT or CONSULTANT shall be 
construed as a beneficiary to this Agreement. 

6. INSURANCE COVERAGE. CONSULTANT is protected by 
Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by applicable 
state laws and will maintain employer’s liability coverage of 
$1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury, $1,000,000 each 
employee and $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by 
disease. During the performance of this agreement 
CONSULTANT will maintain professional liability insurance with 
a limit of $1,000,000 on a claims made, annual aggregate basis, 
and commercial general liability and automobile liability 
insurance each with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 million on 
an occurrence basis. 

7. ALLOCATION OF RISK. CLIENT and CONSULTANT have discussed 
the risks associated with this project and the extent to which those risks 
should be shared by CLIENT and by CONSULTANT, and have agreed: 
(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to limit the 
liability of CONSULTANT, its officers, employees, and subconsultants to 
CLIENT, all landowners, contractors, subcontractors, lenders, suppliers, 

manufacturers, third parties, and their employees such that the total 
aggregate liability, including all attorneys fees and costs shall not 
exceed $50,000.00 or the total fees paid for CONSULTANT’s services 
on this project, whichever is greater. (b) All damages such as loss of 
use, profits, anticipated profits, and the like losses are consequential 
damages for which CONSULTANT is not liable. (c) CLIENT shall give 
written notice to CONSULTANT of any claim of negligent act, error or 
omission within one (1) year after the completion of the work performed 
by CONSULTANT. Failure to give notice herein required shall constitute 
a waiver of said claim by CLIENT. 

8. SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION. Any construction inspection or 
testing provided by CONSULTANT is for the purpose of determining 
compliance by contractors with the functional provisions of project 
documents only. CLIENT agrees that CONSULTANT will have no 
inspection responsibilities at the jobsite except to the extent specifically 
provided for in the agreed upon scope of work. CONSULTANT shall not 
be held in any way to guarantee any contractor’s work, nor to assume 
responsibility for means, methods or appliances used by any contractor 
nor to assume responsibility for a contractor’s compliance with laws and 
regulations or for contractor’s errors, omissions, or defective work. 
CLIENT agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction 
practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume sole 
and complete responsibility for jobsite conditions during the course of 
construction of the project, including safety of all persons and property 
and that this responsibility shall be continuous and not be limited to 
normal working hours. CLIENT agrees to require in all construction 
contracts for the project, provisions that CLIENT and CONSULTANT 
shall be defended and indemnified by the contractor and its 
subcontractors and named additional insureds on contractor’s and 
subcontractor’s insurance. Any Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
furnished by CONSULTANT are based on professional opinions and 
judgment, and CONSULTANT will not be responsible for fluctuations in 
construction costs. 

9. SERVICES BY CLIENT. CLIENT will provide access to site of work, 
obtain all permits, provide all legal services in connection with the 
project, and provide environmental impact reports and energy 
assessments unless specifically included in the scope of work. CLIENT 
shall pay the costs of checking and inspection fees, zoning application 
fees, soils engineering fees, testing fees, surveying fees, and all other 
fees, permits, bond premiums, and all other charges not specifically 
covered by the scope of work. CLIENT shall designate to 
CONSULTANT the location of all subsurface utility lines and other 
subsurface man-made objects (in this agreement collectively called 
“buried utilities”) within the boundaries of the jobsite. CONSULTANT will 
conduct at CLIENT’s expense such additional research as in 
CONSULTANT’s professional opinion is appropriate to attempt to verify 
the location of buried utilities at the jobsite, but CLIENT shall remain 
responsible for the accurate designation of their location and, shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold CONSULTANT harmless from any claims 
or loss arising from the failure to accurately locate buried utilities. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall each 
use reasonable care in its efforts to comply with laws, codes, ordinances 
and regulations in force at the time of the performance by each under 
this agreement, insofar as such laws are applicable to a party’s 
performance. Unless otherwise provided for in the scope of work of this 
agreement or by law, the responsibility for making any disclosures or 
reports to any third party, for notifying all governmental authorities of the 
discovery of hazardous materials on the jobsite, and for taking 
corrective, remedial, or mitigative action shall be solely that of CLIENT. 
It is CONSULTANT’s belief that the work is not subject to California or 
any applicable state Prevailing Wage Law, unless expressly identified 
as such within the scope of work. Should it be alleged or determined 
that some or all of the work is subject to California’s or any applicable 
state Prevailing Wage Law, then CLIENT shall reimburse 
CONSULTANT for the additional costs associated with CONSULTANT 
complying with those laws. 

147



Standard Conditions (Page 2) 1 August 2021 

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/contractupdates/shared documents/client standard conditions/fmstandardconditions_pw_2021.docx  Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. August 2021 

11. USE OF DOCUMENTS. Drawings, reports, writings and other original 
documents (documents) furnished by CONSULTANT are for the 
exclusive use of CLIENT and CONSULTANT retains all intellectual 
property rights including copyrights. Documents are furnished to 
CLIENT upon CLIENT’s specific agreement that it assumes all liability 
resulting from the further distribution of such documents, or any portion 
of them, and that CLIENT will indemnify CONSULTANT and hold it 
harmless against any claims associated with the unauthorized use of 
such documents. In no event will CLIENT or any person acting on its 
behalf edit, abridge, or modify any document prepared by 
CONSULTANT without CONSULTANT’s express written consent. 

12. ELECTRONIC DATA. Documents provided by CONSULTANT in 
electronic formats are provided under the following conditions unless 
detailed otherwise in the scope of work or by a written amendment. 
Documents are provided in CONSULTANT’s standard software formats. 
CLIENT recognizes that electronic data and its transmission can be 
easily damaged, may not be compatible with CLIENT’S software 
formats and systems, may develop inaccuracies during conversion or 
use, and may contain viruses or other destructive programs, and that 
software and hardware operating systems may become obsolete. As a 
condition of delivery of electronic data, CLIENT agrees to defend 
indemnify and hold CONSULTANT, its subconsultants, agents and 
employees harmless from and against all claims, loss, damages, 
expense and liability arising from or connected with its use, reuse, 
misuse, modification or misinterpretation. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be liable for any loss of use, profit or any other damage. 

13. TERMINATION. This agreement may be terminated by either party by 
written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform its 
obligations under this agreement and continue such default after the 
expiration of a seven (7) day notice period. Either party may terminate 
this agreement without necessity of cause upon the expiration of a thirty 
(30) day notice period. If this agreement is terminated by CLIENT in the 
absence of default by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT shall be paid for 
services performed and costs incurred by it prior to its receipt of notice 
of termination from CLIENT, including reimbursement for direct 
expenses due, plus an additional amount, not to exceed ten percent 
(10%) of charges incurred to the termination notice date, to cover 
services to orderly close the work and prepare project files and 
documentation, plus any additional direct expenses incurred by 
CONSULTANT including but not limited to cancellation fees or charges. 
CONSULTANT will use reasonable efforts to minimize such additional 
charges. 

14. PRECEDENCE OF CONDITIONS. Should any conflict exist between 
the terms herein and the terms of any purchase order or confirmation 
issued by CLIENT, the terms of these Standard Conditions shall prevail 
in the absence of CONSULTANT’s express written agreement to the 
contrary. 

15. ASSIGNMENT: SUBCONTRACTING. Neither CLIENT nor 
CONSULTANT shall assign any of its rights including a right to sue, or 
delegate its duties under this agreement without the written consent of 
the other. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE. Any delay or default in the performance of any 
obligation of CONSULTANT under this agreement resulting from any 
cause(s) beyond CONSULTANT’s reasonable control shall not be 
deemed a breach of this agreement. The occurrence of any such event 
shall suspend the obligations of CONSULTANT as long as performance 
is delayed or prevented thereby, and the fees due hereunder shall be 
equitably adjusted. 

17. MERGER: WAIVER: SURVIVAL. This agreement constitutes the entire 
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 
all prior negotiations, representations and/or agreements, written or oral. 
One or more waiver of any term, condition or other provision of this 
agreement by either party shall not be construed as a waiver of a 
subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. Any provision 
hereof which is legally deemed void or unenforceable shall not void this 
entire agreement and all other provisions shall survive and be 
enforceable. 

18. APPLICABLE LAW. This agreement shall be interpreted and enforced 
according to the laws of the State of California. In the case of invalidity 
or unenforceability of any provision or portion thereof, the provision shall 
be rewritten and enforced to the maximum extent permitted by laws to 

accomplish as near as possible the intent of the original provision. 
Nothing herein shall be construed to provide for indemnification against 
damages arising from a party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

19. COUNTERPARTS; SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed 
simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. The parties agree that electronic (including without 
limitation .pdf), email or facsimile signatures of this Agreement shall 
have the same force and effect as original signatures. Each 
undersigned representative of the parties to this Agreement certifies that 
he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and to execute and legally bind such party to this 
Agreement.  

 

148



Proposal Fee Estimate

 CLIENT Name:  

PROJECT Description: Collection System Support

Proposal/Job Number: B018340*32101 Date:
 

Carmel Area Wastewater District

4/28/2023

January 1, 2022 Rates KJ KJ KJ

 

 

  

 
t

    

 
 

 

Classification: A
id

e

Total La
bo

r

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

To
ta

l
La

bo
r

A
dm

in
. A

ss
is

t.

En
g-

Sc
i-5

En
g-

Sc
i-4

 G
IS

Sr
. C

A
D

-D
es

ig
n

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

En
g-

Sc
i-3

En
g-

Sc
i-1

Sr
. C

A
D

-T
ec

h

C
A

D
-T

ec
h

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
is

ta
nt

En
g-

Sc
i-9

 L
eg

al

En
g-

Sc
i-8

 Q
C

En
g-

Sc
i-7

 P
E

En
g-

Sc
i-6

 P
M

En
g-

Sc
i-2

To
ta

l
Ex

pe
ns

es

To
ta

l L
ab

or
 +

 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Hourly Rate: $310 $295 $275 $250 $225 $205 $190 $170 $140 $175 $160 $145 $130 $135 $115 $90 Hours Fees Fees 10% Fees

Task 1 - Capital Improvement Plan Support

Setup + Draft Figures (40) 2 5 45 5 57 $11,875 $0 $11,875 $0 $11,875

Final Figures (40) 2 2 5 20 5 1 35 $7,455 $0 $7,455 $0 $7,455

Project Meetings 4 4 1 9 $1,935 $50 $5 $1,935 $55 $1,990

Task 1 - Subtotal 0 2 4 14 0 69 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 101 $21,265 $50 $5 $21,265 $55 $21,320

Task 2 - Engineering Report Support

Collect, Compile, Review Background Information 5 10 15 15 45 $9,500 $0 $9,500 $0 $9,500

Analysis 2 10 20 20 20 72 $15,840 $0 $15,840 $0 $15,840

Tables and Figures 2 10 20 30 20 2 84 $18,120 $0 $18,120 $0 $18,120

Report Writing 2 2 10 30 30 20 2 96 $21,240 $50 $5 $21,240 $55 $21,295

Project Meetings 2 2 4 2 1 11 $2,695 $150 $15 $2,695 $165 $2,860

Task 2 - Subtotal 4 6 37 84 0 97 0 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 308 $67,395 $200 $20 $67,395 $220 $67,615

Task 3 Project Management

Project Management 4 2 20 15 2 43 $8,985 $0 $8,985 $0 $8,985

QA/QC 4 6 4 8 2 2 26 $6,860 $0 $6,860 $0 $6,860

Task 3 - Subtotal 4 10 6 28 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 69 $15,845 $0 $0 $15,845 $0 $15,845

Task 4 Optional Services

Additional support for Tasks 1 and 2 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000

Supplemental projects 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000

Task 4 - Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000

All Tasks Total 8 18 47 126 0 168 0 87 0 0 0 0 0 15 9 0 478 $104,505 $250 $25 $104,505 $275 $134,780

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/CAWD/Shared Documents/Collection System Support/Draft CAWD collection 042523 Copy of KJ 2022 fmProposalFeeEstimate_PhaseTask_APC(2022_update) © 2008 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

149



RESOLUTION 2023-30 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC.  TO PROVIDE 
ENGINEERING SUPPORT FOR PREPARATION OF THE REPORT FOR  THE 

CALIFORNIA  RIVER WATCH SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $134,780 

PROJECT # 20-05 

 

  WHEREAS,  the District plans to approve  the 2023/2024  budget that 
includes funding for Consulting Engineering in the Collections operating budget in the 
amount of $224,800; 

  WHEREAS, there is a need for engineering support to complete the report 
summarizing completion of the California River Watch settlement agreement 
requirements prior to the February 20, 2024 deadline; 

  WHEREAS, in order to complete the summary and analysis of the data 
collected as part of the settlement agreement, it is necessary for the District to execute a 
contract with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. to provide engineering support services 
not to exceed an  amount of $134,780. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of 
Carmel Area Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into 
a contract with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. to provide engineering support 
services for the California River Watch report; 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 25, 2023. 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

 
______________________________________________ 

      Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Domine Barring, Secretary to the Board 

150



General Manager's Oral Report

151



Other Items Before the Board

152



 
Staff Report 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
DATE: May 25, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Road work 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is asking for direction from the Board of Directors on this item. 
 
DISCUSSION 
  
The Board expressed dissatisfaction with the condition of the roads in the District 
service area where there has been sewer work.  The Board agreed that the issue be 
returned to the full board for discussion. 
 
In general, there are two types of projects where paving might apply: 
 

1) Private sewer lateral work – if a homeowner needs to connect to the main line in 
the roadway they typically must leave their parcel and enter the roadway.  The 
District routinely advises our customers to obtain an encroachment permit from 
either the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea or the County of Monterey as they are the 
owners of the roadway. 
 
When our staff inspects a sewer lateral job we only inspect the sewer itself.  
Inspection of the roadway is left for either the City or County to complete as the 
owners of the roadway asset. 

 
2) Sewer Repair or Replacement work performed by District – if the District is 

performing a project in the roadway we will then include paving in the contract 
and require that it meet the County/City requirements for trench backfill and  
paving.  In this example the construction inspector is responsible for ensuring 
that the work is done correctly and meets the requirements stated in our plans. 

 
 

  

153



In neither of these two examples do we require that the entire roadway be resurfaced, 
currently patch paving is acceptable.  However, as stated above, the final decision 
comes from the City or County, who will as appropriate, determine the requirements 
based on the condition of the existing street.  All work is done in accordance with the 
requirements of the City, County, or other Agency having jurisdiction thereover. 
 
There has been a suggestion that we require contractors to get a sign off from the City 
Inspector prior to our sign off.  That would not work because the City already sends 
contractors back to us saying they will not sign until the District signs.  We would be 
creating a circular permitting approval problem. 
 
An additional suggestion was to require s sack slurry, a weak concrete mixture that 
does not require compaction as the top level of compaction.  Our current Standard 
Plans and Specifications, Section 5.05, states “The material, placement and compaction 
shall be done in accordance with the requirements and inspection of the District City or 
County as applicable.”  CAWD would need to clear this method with the City and/or 
County prior to requiring it, and we would not eliminate the need for an encroachment 
permit. 
 
CAWD details paving replacement in Section 6 of the Standard Plans and Specifications 
(2019).  
 

6.02 PAVING IN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OR PUBLIC UTLITY EASEMENT 
Paving in these areas shall be done in accordance with the requirements of the 
City, County or other Agency having jurisdiction thereover. 

6.03 PAVING IN CAWD EASEMENTS AND IN PRIVATE PROPERTY   
Pavement shall be replaced in kind unless otherwise shown on Plans or required 
by the Engineer. 

 
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/carmelwastewaterca/latest/carmelwastewater_ca/0-0-0-2067 
 

 
FINANCIAL 
Undetermined at this time.   
However, in general, if we add paving to a project it can add up to 20% to total costs.  

154

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/carmelwastewaterca/latest/carmelwastewater_ca/0-0-0-2067


STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Summary of Monterey County Treasurer 

Report dated March 31, 2023 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Action required – requesting acceptance of report. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Inflation has shown itself to be more entrenched than previously expected as the Federal 
Reserve’s preferred price tracker inches lower but remains far elevated above their long-
term average inflation target.  Meanwhile, the broader outlook has become more uncertain 
following the announcement of two large bank failures and the takeover of a third.  The 
Federal Reserve acknowledged the negative shock from the issues in the banking sector but 
remains committed to fighting inflation as they near the end of this rate hike cycle. 
 
The Federal Reserve Summary of Economic Projections for March changed slightly from 
December, still projecting the federal funds rate to end 2023 just above 5%.  While the 
current rate of 4.75% to 5.00% is still a 25 basis point (0.25%) hike away from that target, 
market expectations point to no additional rate hikes and a target rate lowered to 4.25% by 
the end of the year.  Although the Federal Reserve has maintained that they will keep rates 
elevated for some time, the market pricing assumes that there will be a slight chance of an 
economic downturn or worsening financial conditions. 
 
One March 21, 2023, the Monterey County investment portfolio contained an amortized 
book value of $2,823,035,433 spread among 300 separate securities and funds.  The par 
value of those funds was $2,846,291,249 with a market value of $2,764,310,402 or 98% of 
amortized book value. 
 

  

155



The investment portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 406 days.  The County 
Treasury continues to utilize shorter term debt to provide portfolio liquidity and enhanced 
investment opportunities in the current market environment. 
 

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 
 09-30-22 12-31-22 03-31-23 
Total Assets $2,479,457,264 $2,951,545,544 $2,846,291,249 
Market Value $2,382,359,729 $2,847,146,415 $2,764,310,402 
Days to 
Maturity 

450 441 406 

Yield 1.06% 1.78% 2.33% 
Estimated 
Earnings 

$6,528,970 $11,952,629 $16,181,866 

 
The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 
which are authorized by the State of California Government Code §53601. 
 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 03-31-23 
Corporate Notes 17.1% 
Overnight Liquid Assets 19.5% 
US Treasuries 38.3% 
Federal Agencies 19.2% 
Commercial Paper 1.8% 
Negotiable CDs 1.8% 
Supranationals 2.1% 
Municipal Bonds <0.1% 
Asset Backed Securities <0.1% 
 
Future Strategy:  The Treasury continues to strategically invest matured assets while 
accounting for potential liquidity needs.  Opportunities are actively evaluated to safely add 
value to the County’s portfolio while maintaining a strong sense of safety and risk 
management.   
 
The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law and 
the adopted Investment Policy contained sufficient liquidity to meet all projected outflows 
over the next six months. 
 
Note:  the Monterey County Treasurer Report is available on the Monterey County 
Treasury website.  
 

156

https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/government/departments-i-z/treasurer-tax-collector/treasury


 Information/Discussion Items

157



Carmel Area Wastewater District 

WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project 

Construction Progress Report 

May 11th, 2023 

Prepared by: Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
Contractor: Clark Bros Inc (CBI) 

158



 

 

Section 1: Project Summary 

Project Summary 
General Contractor   Clark Bros Inc 
Contract Value 
Contract Bid Amount   $7,291,500 
Change Orders Issued to Date   1 
Value Added Change 
Order Cost (1) 

% of Bid Amount  $59,212.57   0.81% 

Non Value Added 
Change Order Cost (2) 

% of Bid Amount  $73,505.95  1.0% 

Total Change Order 
Cost 

% of Bid Amount  $132,718.52  1.8% 

Current Contract Value   $7,424,218.52 
Open/Pending Potential Change Orders (PCO)  0 
Contract Time 
Notice To Proceed  September 7th, 2021 
Original Contract Time   550 Calendar Days 
Calendar Days Elapsed   610 Days 
Weather Days: Accepted to Date   5 Days 
Contract Change Order(s) Time Extension   0 Days 
Current Contract Completion Date   March 11th, 2023 
Contract Progress Summary 
Total Project Time Expended   111% 
Total Project Construction Cost Expended   71% (not including retention) 
Notes: 

1. Value Added Change Orders include: District Requested Additional Work and 
Betterments 

2. Non Value Added Change Orders include: Design Issues, and 
Unforeseen/Differing Site Conditions   

159



 

 

Section 2: Work Performed This Month 

2.1 General 

Work this month focused on commissioning of the new Motor Control Center (MCC) 
for the Headworks, startup of one new Mechanical Barscreen for the Headworks, and 
installation of the second new Influent Pump. 

2.1.1 Submittals 

Submittals reviewed this month included the Temporary Bypass Pumping Plan for the 
Effluent Building, Schedule Update, ventilation ductwork, and various startup reports. 

2.1.2 PLC Programming 

PLC programming by Frisch Engineering is in progress. 

2.2 Site Work 

2.2.1 Potholing/Locating Existing Utilities 

None. 

2.3 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 

Clark Bros is waiting for the ground to dry up more before the remainder of backfill 
and compaction is completed at the location of the demolished sludge tanks. 

2.4 Influent Pump Station Rehab 

The first new Influent Pump has been in operation for about one month and has not 
ragged up. This month Clark Bros has been installing the second new Influent Pump 
and associated piping. New electrical from the new MCC was hooked up to several 
existing equipment motors in the Influent Pump Station. 

2.5 Headworks Rehab 

The new MCC for the Headworks was commissioned this month allowing startup of 
one of two new Mechanical Bar Screens, and the associated Screen Wash Press. This 
equipment removes rags and other debris before it enters into the downstream 
treatment system. Coatings were applied to the inside of the new Grit Classifier prior to 
installation scheduled for early June. 

160



 

 

2.6 Chlorination Building Rehab/3W System Improvements 

No work observed. 

2.7 Effluent Pump Station Rehab 

The plan for the Temporary Bypass Pumping is undergoing engineering review. 
Stockpiled material for work in this area was inventoried in preparation for work to 
begin in June/July. Also, the new compressor for the large bubble mixing system was 
installed in the building. 

Section 3: Project Issues 

On September 1st, 2022, Clark Bros notified CAWD that the MCC were experiencing 
extended delays beyond what was previously anticipated and that the MCC may not be 
onsite until June of 2023. CAWD sent a notice to Clark Bros on September 7th, 2022 
stating that CAWD will incur financial loss if the work is not completed in the Contract 
Time, and reaffirming that there hasn’t been a change to the Contract Time stipulated in 
the Agreement. 

Clark Bros has been working diligently with the supplier in getting the MCC onsite 
without significant delays. The Influent Pump Station MCC was delivered on March 2nd, 
2023. The Headworks MCC was delivered on March 24th, 2023. The Chlorination 
Building MCC and the Effluent Building MCC are projected to arrive onsite in June. 

 

Section 4: RFI and Submittals Review Summary 

The following table contains a summary of RFI/Clarifications and Submittals to date: 

  Total Number  

Processed 

Number Received   

in Current Month 

RFI/Clarifications  57  5 

Submittals  177  5 

 

   

161



 

 

Section 5: Change Order Summary 

Potential change orders (PCOs) are being generated for differing site conditions, owner 
requested changes, and design issues.  

 

Total Number 

Processed to 

Date 

Open PCO 

Pending 

Quote/Approval 

Number 

Generated in 

Current Month 

Total Cost 

Approved to 

Date 

Potential Change 

Orders (PCO) 

12  0  1  NA 

Change Orders  4  1  0  $132,718.52 

 

Section 6: Project Schedule and Budget 

6.1 Schedule 

MCC deliveries have been a moving target and have already delayed the project by 
about 6 months. Clark Bros submitted a revised schedule in April that reflects the 
delays to project completion. Clark Bros and CAWD are currently negotiating a 
potential time extension to account for delays in MCC procurement. 

6.2 Budget 

At this time the approved change orders amount to 1.8% of the project cost. The project 
management team is continually monitoring the costs of potential changes to manage 
costs. 

Currently the amount to be paid to CBI is 71% (not including retention) of the total 
approved budget (77% with retention). 

Section 7: Photos 

 Influent Pump Station Rehab 
 Headworks Rehab 
 Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 

 Effluent Pump Station Rehab 

162



Photos:
Influent Pump Station Rehab

163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



Photos:
Headworks Rehab

171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



Photos:
Sludge Holding Tank 

Replacement

179



180



Photos:
Effluent Pump Station Rehab

181



182



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer (Acting 

General Manager) 
 
Date:  May 25, 2023 
 
Subject: Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)- Regular Board Meeting 

on April 28, 2023 
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Agenda items from April 28, 2023, meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 
 

• Total cash balance at the end of March 2023 was $30.7M; of that $24M was designated 
for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves. Property taxes comprise roughly 80% of 
PBCSD revenues with user fees making up 22% of the total actual cost of wastewater 
operations.   
 

• Total revenues through March 2023 in the cash-based budget were $15.3M or 52% of the 
FY22-23 budget. Total expenditures were $12.4M or 42% of the FY22-23 budget.  
 

• PBCSD revised their Organization Chart to include two new positions: an additional 
maintenance worker and an assistant engineer. The new positions are being added in 
anticipation of transitions in staffing due to retirements. 
 

• Staff presented the FY23-24 Preliminary Budget to the Board for approval.  The annual 
total preliminary budget was $30.8M. Operation &Maintenance costs amounted to 
about 57% of the budget and Capital Outlays were about 43%.  
 

• Approximately 115 million gallons (MG) or 353 Acre Feet (AF) of recycled water is 
stored in Forest Lake, which represents 100% of permitted capacity.  The storage 
volume is slightly higher than the historic average of 111 MG or 340 AF. 
 

• Average daily wastewater flow of 978,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in 
March at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 42% of the total flow at the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District (CAWD) treatment facility.  
 

  

183



The measured PBCSD flow was 88% above the five-year average of 518,000 GPD for the 
month of March.  The CAWD total flows were 58% above the five-year average of 
1,469,000 GPD for March. 
 

• Total irrigation water demand for the 2023 calendar year through March was 8 AF. 
Total demand for the calendar year is 89% below the 5-year average of 75 AF through 
March. The month of March reflected no change in storage volume at Forest Lake. 
 

• PBCSD staff requested approval of a construction contract with Triton Construction for 
$75,000 to replace a diesel fuel underground storage tank at Pump Station P7. 

 
• Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show: 

 
MONTH TOTAL CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW PBCSD 
Aug -22 35.881 24.412 11.469 31.96% 
Sept – 22 33.941 23.173 10.768 31.73% 
Oct -22 31.961 22.411 9.55 29.88% 

Nov – 22 34.002 22.641 11.361 33.41% 
Dec -22 57.963 33.771 24.192 41.74% 
Jan -23 81.216 45.825 35.391 43.58% 
Feb-23 43.194 26.652 16.542 38.30% 
Mar-23 102.585 72.259 30.326 29.56% 
Total 420.743 271.144 149.599 35.56% 

 
 
FUNDING  
Informational item only 
 
 

184



 
Staff Report 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
DATE: May 25, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Reclamation Management Committee 05-09-23 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This is informational for discussion purposes only. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The primary function of the May meeting each year is to approve the upcoming budget 
and review project finances and functional areas. 
 

• Approval of Project Budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 
This year marks the first year where the Project has no debt on its budget.  The 
Certificates of Participation (COP) and Past Letter of Credit Fees/Bond Carrying 
Costs are paid off as of 06-30-23.  As a result, the fixed component of water costs 
decreased significantly, and the Project was able to add $825,000 to reserves for the 
project.  Operating Expenses increased 10.65% over prior year actuals but were 
3.12% less than prior year budget.  Capital Projects reflected a continuation of the 
Facilities Master Plan at CAWD and the Pipeline Cathodic Protection project for 
Pebble Beach Community Service District. 
  

• Financial Statements March 31, 2023 
Highlights of the Preliminary Reclamation Financial Statements for the nine months 
ended March 31, 2023 show unrestricted cash up $348K from the prior year, total 
current assets down $68K from prior year and long-term debt is zero.  Water sales 
went down 12%, due in large measure to a wet winter.  Plant expenses down 9% 
due to membrane modules still not purchased.  Distribution expenses are down 
$44K due to source water and consulting costs. 
 
Water sales are 21% below budget.  To date, 494 acre feet sold or 134 acre feet under 
the budget of 628 acre feet.  Operating income is $76K or 3% under budget. 
 
 

  

185



• Treatment Plant 
Staff continues to work with Trussell Engineering to maintain optimal secondary 
operations.  Staff has ordered a replacement set of Scinor modules, expected 
delivery is May 20th.  Clean in Place (CIPs) were conducted on all three Reverse 
Osmosis trains.  Maintenance replaced high pressure isolation valves on Reverse 
Osmosis trains.  The valves were leaking, which could create over pressure on the 
Polyvinyl  Chloride (PVC) piping and lead to failure.   
 

• Distribution System 
Staff participated in a field visit with corrosion engineer Corrpro to assess project 
site constructability and to generate a revised construction cost proposal.  Staff 
anticipates receiving related cost proposal sometime in May. 
 
Alternative Source Water – Bird Rock Well No. 02 was placed into service in mid 
April with an estimated flow rate of 10-15 gpm. 
 
Total irrigation demand for the 2023 calendar year through April is 89 acre feet.  
This is 66% below last year’s demand of 260 acre feet. 
 

 
FINANCIAL-None   

186



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 

Date:  May 25, 2023 
 

Subject:          Codification Project Update 
   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This report is provided to update the Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District on the 
Codification Project.  You can view the end product as follows: 
 

1. Go to cawd.org and click on the box labelled “District Administrative Code”, which 
directs the user to the District website landing page. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. This landing page has a hyperlink to the published  District Administrative Code, 
which is hosted by American Legal Publishing.  .  Click the  link “Published Code of 
Ordinances and Resolutions” 
 
 
 

  

187



3. The user will be directed to the American Legal hosting site. The left side of the page
is where the user can search for specific criteria. There is also search function that
can be used to facilitate the user in their search.

The online site is updated monthly.  The hard or paper copy will be updated on a  quarterly 
basis and kept at the Administrative Office.  This platform provides access to the most 
current and relevant District ordinances and there is a parallel reference table to prior 
code sections for local ordinances and resolutions that is easily searchable to staff and the 
public in a logical structure. 

188



Announcements Subject of Interest to the Board 
Made by Members of the Board or Staff

• PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meeting is scheduled for:
o Friday, May 26, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – Director Urquhart is scheduled to attend.
o Friday, June 30, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – President White is scheduled to attend. 

• Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
o Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. –President White  is scheduled to attend.

o Tuesday, October TBD , 2023, at 6:00 p.m. –Director Rachel are scheduled to attend. 
o

• Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for: 
o Tuesday, November 7, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. President White and Director Rachel is scheduled to 

attend.

189



Adjournment

190


	01.A  Board Packet Cover
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

	01.B Consolidated Public Comment Carmel Meadows - Ju-Porter-Purcell-Tarantino-Turbow
	Public Comment Cml Meadows - Ju
	Public Comment Cml Meadows - Porter
	Public Comment Cml Meadows - Purcell
	Public Comment Cml Meadows - Tarantino
	Public Comment Cml Meadows - Turbow

	01.C Public Comment Carmel Meadows - Scopp
	03.A 04-27-23 Mtng Minutes - Final
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	Director Siegfried made the following additional comments:
	 County updated Local Area Management Plan and there will be public outreach for the septic tanks.
	 CBA Meeting regarding short term rental mandate and additional housing and there is going to be pressure on vacant land and work needs to be done on the condemnation presentation done sooner than later. Mr. Wellington replied that he has reached out...
	 Request to have a board discussion regarding road repairs around town regarding lateral replacements. Director Siegfried, in discussion with the General Manager, Barbara Buikema, it was conveyed that a City permit would have to be obtained. Director...

	03.B 5-15-23 Budget Minutes
	3645 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923
	The committee discussed the following agenda items:

	04.A CLA Independent Accountants Report -2023 MARCH GL - FINAL
	04.B CLA Independent Accountants Report-April 2023 GL
	05. 2022-23 April Cash Receipts & Disburs Report
	0423
	graph 1
	graph 2

	06. CAWD Disbursements
	07. Recl Disbursements
	08. April 2023 Financil Stmt
	09.A April 2023 Board Report
	STAFF REPORT
	FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Line Cleaning Table
	CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)
	Manhole Inspection Table
	Riverwatch Update
	 Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of the damaged or deteriorated manholes.
	 Staff has completed the CCTV inspections and Pumps Station evaluations are being reviewed by the Principal Engineer, all of this information will be used for the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.
	General comments

	09.B Cleaning Map April 2023
	09.C Call-out Map April
	09.D April 2023 Spill Map
	10. Safety Report 05-May '23.v1
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	11. Treatment Facility Operations Report-April 2023
	12. Laboratory Report 2023 April 
	13. Implementation Plan Schedule 5-11-23
	14. Project Summaries 05-25-23-BB
	            ADP Workforce Now

	15. Plant Ops Staff April 2023 2
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 Staff participated in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the Digester building conference room.
	 April 12, Plant staff participated in skill set drills for confined space knots.
	 April 19, the Operations Superintendent attended an online seminar on “Pesky Compensation Issues under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) sponsored by Liebert, Cassidy, and Whitmore.
	 April 19, the Operations Superintendent attended a State of California online seminar on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorin...
	Meetings Attended
	 April 13, Operations Superintendent attended a Zoom meeting with the Water Awareness Committee of Monterey County.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of March 2023.
	  There were no violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of March 2023.
	 The Semi-Annual October 2022 through March 2023 Toxicity Report for the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 was submitted with no violations.
	FUNDING-N/A-Informational item only

	16. Maintenance Staff Report 5- May 2023-edits
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	17.A Engineering Staff Report  May 2023
	17.B Divider Page Resolutions Section Break
	18.A Reclamation Budget 23-24 - Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	18.B  CAWDPBCSD Reclamation Project Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24
	18.C RES 2023-29 Adopting  CAWD-PBCSD Reclamation Project Budget 2023-24
	19.A KJ Contract_RIVERWATCH_staff report
	19.B RES 23-30 Kennedy Jenks Engr Support
	19.C KJ Proposal for CAWD Collection System Support 042823
	CAWD collection system support proposal 042823
	Task 1 – Capital Improvement Plan Support
	Task 2 – Engineering Report Support
	Task 3 – Project Management
	Task 4 – Optional Services

	2022 Rate Schedule
	Personnel Compensation
	Classification Hourly Rate

	Direct Expenses

	fmStandardConditions_PW_2021
	CAWD collection system support proposal fee 042823
	Proposal Fee Estimate


	20.A Communications General Manager's Oral Report Break 
	20.B Divider Page Other Items Before the Board-Break
	21.  Road Paving staff rpt
	22. Mo Co Treasurer 03-31-23
	22.C Divider Page Information & Disscusion Items Break
	23. Project #18-01 - Monthly Construction Progress Report - May 2023
	24. PBCSD April Regular Board Meeting Staff Report
	DISCUSSION

	25. Reclamation Mtg 05-09-23
	26. Codification
	27.A Divider Page Announcements on Subject of Interest to the Board
	28. Divider Page Adjournment

	Text1: CAWD
	Text2: 04/28/2023


